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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting their 9% Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 (“Financial Year”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the financial year under review, the Company has earned profit of Rs. 8,466 (INR in thousands). The
financial summary of the Company for the F.Y. ended 2024-25 is given below:

Particulars Year Ended on 31 March, 2025 Year Ended on 31 March, 2024
(Figures in X Thousands) (Figures in X Thousands)
Total Revenue 53,962 1,24,314
Other Income 3,340 791
Total Income 57,302 1,25,106
Total Expenses 45,581 95911
Profit /loss before taxation 11,721 29,195
Less: Tax Expenses 3,255 6,519
Profit / loss after tax 8,466 22,676

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Board of the Company approved the scheme of
amalgamation into and with its holding company i.e., Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Holding Company).
However, due to unavoidable circumstances the merger was delayed.

Thereafter, during the financial year under review, the management resumed the merger process and
approached the Board of Directors for its approval. Post the Board approval, all regulators were duly intimated.

However, in the interim, the management post discussion with National Housing Board (NHB) proposed to
revive the business of the Company. The detailed revival plan has been prepared and the management is taking
all steps to restore the business of booking loans.

The management is hopeful of reporting loan disbursal in the report for next financial year.

COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as per the provisions of Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

RESERVES

During the year, X1,711 (in thousands) were transferred to the Statutory Reserve created under the provisions
of Section 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 ("NHB Act").

DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors did not recommend dividend for the financial year 2024-25.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

The Company continues to fulfill all the norms and standards laid down by the NHB pertaining to non—
performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity assets etc. As at March 31, 2025, the Company’s capital
adequacy ratio (CAR) stood at 123.21 % of which Tier I capital was 122.60% and Tier II capital was 0.61% as
per regulatory normes.

ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS

During the year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals against or by the Company impacting the going concern status or operations of the Company in
future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT

Material changes and commitment which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company
to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report, are as follows:

Change in Directorships:

S. No. Name Designation Change Date of Change

1 Aditya Gupta Director Regularisation as Director May 09, 2025

There are no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, which
have occurred after March 31, 2025 till the date of this report.

REGULATORY GUIDELINES

The power of regulation of Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) has been conferred on Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) and National Housing Board (INHB) to carry out the function of supervision of HFCs. RBI had issued
‘Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021’ (RBI HFC Directions) which are applicable on the Company.

The NHB conducted regulatory inspection of the Company for the financial years 2022-23 and 2023—-24 and
the inspection concluded without any substantial observations or penal actions. However, the supervisory
rating for the said inspection is awaited from the Regulator.

The Company remains committed to maintaining the highest standards of regulatory compliance and
governance, and continues to work in close alignment with the RBI/HFC Directions and other directions/
guidelines issued by RBI/NHB wherever applicable.

LENDING OPERATIONS

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (NBFC-HFC) and is
engaged in Housing Finance activities in India. All other activities of the Company revolve around the main
business activities of the Company.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING DURING
THE YEAR/STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIR

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Holding Company) and is
registered with the NHB to carry on housing finance activities. The Company has earned interest income of
48,573 (in Thousands) on loans. There are no outstanding material commitments, tax liabilities etc. affecting
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the financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

During the current financial year, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved the scheme of
Amalgamation (“the Scheme”) for the amalgamation with its Holding Company. The company approached all
the stakeholders including RBI and NHB for No objection on the same.

However, as per the advice of NHB, the Board decided to revive the business of company. Considering the
same, a business revival plan was approved by Board and also submitted to NHB.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there were no changes in nature of business of the Company.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY / JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES

During the year under review, the Company had no Subsidiary/Joint Ventutres/Associate Companies.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company did not accept any public deposit(s) under the provisions contained in section
73 of the act read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

AUDITORS

* Statutory Auditors
The term of DMKH & Associates, Statutory Auditors was upto the date of AGM for FY 2023-24.

Thereafter, in the Annual General Meeting held on 27t September, 2024, Ravi Rajan & Co., LLP (Firm registration no.
009073N/N500320) was appointed as the Statutory Auditors by shareholders of the company for a period of three years
ie., upto FY 2026-27.

Auditor’s Report: The notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

* Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and Rule 9 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s VKC & Associates, Company
Secretaries (ICSI Firm Registration No. P2018DE(077000) was appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to
undertake the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

The Secretarial Audit Report as given by the Secretarial Auditor in form of MR-3 is appended as Annexure- III to this
Report. The Secretarial Audit Report is self-explanatory and does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark.

¢ Internal Audit & Control

The Company has in place an adequate internal audit framework to monitor the efficacy of internal controls with the
objective of providing to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, an independent, objective and reasonable
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the organization's risk management, control and governance processes.
The Company maintains a robust internal control system designed to ensure the integrity of financial reporting, safeguard
assets, and promote operational efficiency. The audit approach verifies compliance with the regulatory, operational and
system related procedures and controls.

During the year, internal audits were conducted across key operational and financial areas. Comprehensive testing and
evaluations of key processes and control mechanisms was done and no reportable material weakness in the
design/operation was observed as per the provision of Rules 8(5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) of the Act, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to
the Audit Committee, during the year under review.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Act
and other provisions of the Act. The details of the accounting treatment followed during the financial year are mentioned
in Notes to Financial Statements.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has devised a policy for selection and appointment of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Senior Management Employees and their remuneration namely,
Nomination & Remuneration Policy.

The Nomination & Remuneration policy of the Company is placed on the website and can be accessed through the link:
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Salient features of the Nomination & Remuneration Policy, inter alia, includes:
e To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.
e To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
of the organization and provide necessaty report to the Board for further evaluation.
e To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.

CREDIT RATING

The last credit rating was taken from Acuite Ratings & Research, which was withdrawn on 16™ April, 2024. Thereafter,
neither new NCDs were issued by the company and nor any credit rating was required to be obtained during the financial
year. As on date, the Company does not have any rating.

SHARE CAPITAL & CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There were no change in the Share Capital of the Company during the financial year. The authorized Capital and paid-up
capital of the company, as on 31st March, 2025, stands same at X 55,20,00,000 divided into 55200000 equity shares of X
10 each.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 and Section 134 of the Act, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2025 in Form MGT-7 shall be available (upon
submission with MCA) on the website of the Company which can be accessed through the website link: Clix Housing -
Annual Return.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company being incorporated for providing housing finance services, does not carry out any activity relating to
conservation of energy, technology absorption and export of materials, goods or services. Given the nature of the
activities of the Company the provisions pertaining to conservation of energy and technology absorption. Further, the
company did not have Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo during the financial year.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
INCLUDING THOSE WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE
RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

S.No.| Name of the Director Designation Date of Change Appointment/
Resignation
1 Aparna Bihany Director 04/04/2024 Resignation
2 Rakesh Kaul Director 04/04/2024 Appointment
3 Gagan Aggarwal Whole-Time Director 27/05/2024 Appointment
4 Vikram Rathi Director 06/09/2024 Resignation
5 Aditya Gupta Director 07/03/2025 Appointment
6 Kaushik Ramakrishnan Director 19/03/2025 Resignation
7 Amit Kumar Jain CFO - -
8 Vinu R Kalra Company Secretary - -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s performance and business strategy. The
Board of Directors met 6 (Six) times during the financial year 2024-25. The details of directors, meetings and attendance
thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report annexed as Annexure I forming part of this report.

As per the provisions of section 152(6) of the Act, one third of the Board of directors are liable to retire by rotation at
every AGM. Accordingly, Mr. Rakesh Kaul, being longest in the office shall retire at the ensuing AGM. The Board of
Directors considering his contribution to the business of Company had recommended his re-appointment.

The details as per provisions of section 152(6) of the act are provided in the notice calling the AGM.

ANNUAL EVALUATION - BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees and individual
Directors for the financial year 2024-25 in pursuance to the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder as amended
from time to time.

The Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee discussed the performance in line with the requirements of
Act, regulations, directions and the relevant policies of the Company, further basis the discussions, attendance and
involvement of the directors during the meetings the performance was found to be satisfactory. The performance of the
Board and Committees was evaluated based on the terms of reference, frequency of meetings and the decisions taken
during the year. The Committee found that the duties as per the statutory requirements of the Board and committees were
duly met and the performance was satisfactory.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES/INVESTMENTS

The Company is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the RBI. Therefore, provisions related to Loans,
Guarantees/Investments under Section 186 of the Act are not applicable. However, the details of loans, guarantees and
investments availed/ granted by the Company are mentioned under the relevant head of the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

All the related party transactions entered or modified during the financial year, were pursuant to Section 188(1) of the
Act on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business with the holding Company accordingly, no transactions
are being reported in Form AOC-2.

The related party disclosure as required under Clause 3A of Annexure IV of NHB Act is given in Note no. C36 of
Financials Statements enclosed to this Annual Report.

Further, the disclosure of related party transaction also forms part of Schedule to Accounts annexed to the Balance Sheet
and Profit and Loss Account.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company is in the business of lending home loans and loans against properties. The Company has in place effective
Risk Management framework so that risks that the Company faces are identified, controlled, and priced in a manner that
the Company can continue its operations in a profitable and sustainable manner. Risk Management is continuous process
and Company is constantly monitoring its applicable risk and seek modern and scientific methods to mitigate the same.
Further, the Company has Risk Management Committee to monitor and evaluate the same.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby state and
confirm that:

e In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

e The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for that period;

e The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

e The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF A VIGIL MECHANISM

Creating a fraud and corruption-free culture has always been at the Company’s core. Keeping in view of the same and in
compliance with the provisions of the Section 177 of the Act read with the rules made thereunder, the Whistle-Blower
Policy is formulated as part of the Vigil Mechanism established by the Company for Directors and Employees to report
genuine concerns, to provide a secure environment and to encourage employees to report unethical, unlawful or improper
practices, acts or activities in the Company and to prohibit managerial personnel from taking any adverse personnel action
against those employees who report such practices in good faith.

This Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is framed in context of these statutory trequirements and to put in place
an appropriate framework for this purpose. The policy is placed on the website and can be accessed through the link:
Vigil Mechanism .
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has implemented governance practices as mandated by law. The Company is committed to transparency
in all its dealings and places high emphasis on business ethics.

The report on corporate governance drafted in accordance with NHB guidelines is annexed as Annexure-I and forms
part of this Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with the directions issued by RBI, the MD&A Report forms an integral part of this report and gives details
of the overall industry structure, economic developments, performance and state of affairs of your Company’s business
in India, risk management systems and other material developments during the year under review, as per Annexure-II.

BOARD COMMITTEES

During the period under review the Board of the Company had the following committees:

I. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 177(1) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Boards and its Powers) Rules, 2014,
relating to the Composition of Audit Committee are applicable on the Company. The members of the Audit Committee
met 5 (Five) times during the period under review. The details of members, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned
in the Corporate Governance report annexed as Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

II. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of NRC are applicable to the Company. The members of the
NRC met once during the year. The details of members, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate
Governance report annexed as Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

III. ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (ALCO)

Board of Directors has constituted the ALCO as per RBI Regulations. The members of ALCO met four (4) times during
the year. The details of members, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance report
annexed as Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

IV. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (RMC)

The Company has in place an RMC which meets at regular intervals to take note on various risks to the business of the
Company and bring out means and measures to reduce those risks. The Committee met four (4) times during the yeat.
The details of members, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance report annexed as
Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

V. IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted I'T Strategy Committee in compliance with the requirements of applicable regulations issued
by RBI. The scope of the Committee inter alia, includes review and approval of strategy related to information technology,
policy documents, information security and any other matter related to I'T governance. The Committee met four (4) times
during the financial year. The details of members, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate
Governance report annexed as Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

Additionally, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the following Committees as per the requirements
of RBI regulations:

o Identification Committee- For Willful Defaulters

o Review Committee- For Willful Defaulters

e Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring and Follow-up of cases of Frauds
e New Product Committee
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FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA & CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has received undertaking and declaration from each Director on fit and proper criteria in terms of the
provisions of Housing Finance Companies — Corporate Governance Directions, 2016 (NHB Directions). The Board of
Directors has confirmed that all existing Directors are fit and proper to continue to hold the position as Directors on the
Board. The same was reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with the requirements
of NHB Directions. All the directors of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the
Company.

DETAILS OF UNCLAIMED NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

During the year, no new debentures were issued and no debentures were outstanding. Thus, the said provisions are not
applicable on the Company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued and as amended
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

The Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore, there were no
funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to place on record their heartfelt appreciation for the efforts of the Company’s stakeholders.

For and on behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Date: 11t August, 2025 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Gagan Aggarwal Rakesh Kaul
Whole-time Director Director

DIN: 10423472 DIN: 03386665
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ANNEXURE- 1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSPHY

The Company is committed to upholding the highest standards of corporate governance, guided by well-established
principles and best practices. Its corporate governance framework is built upon robust systems and processes that
emphasize transparency, accountability, ethical conduct, regulatory compliance, and a steadfast commitment to
safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders.

The Board of Directors bears the responsibility for ensuring sound governance and is deeply committed to maintaining
the integrity of the Company’s governance practices. The Board plays a pivotal role in overseeing management’s actions
to ensure alignment with both the short-term and long-term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. Governance
practices are subject to continuous evaluation and are benchmarked against leading standards across the industry to ensure
ongoing improvement and excellence.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At Clix Housing, we recognize that a diverse, engaged, and well-informed Board is essential to upholding the highest
standards of corporate governance. We believe that a forward-thinking Board fosters a culture of leadership, providing
strategic vision and policy direction that enhances governance quality over long term.

To support the Board in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities, all statutory, significant, and material information is
presented in a timely and transparent manner. This enables informed decision-making that aligns with the interests of all
stakeholders and reflects the Company’s commitment to its corporate governance philosophy.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Company’s Board consists of 3 (Three) Directors. The board composition during the year and up to the date of this
report is as under:

S. Name of Director Capacity DIN No. of No. of No. of | Remuneration, No. of
No. Director Since Board Board other Salary, or any shares held
Meetings | Meetings | director other in and
Held Attended ships consideration convertible
paid instruments
1. Aparna 02/12/2022 | Whole- Time | 09039798 5 -- -- -- --
Bihany* Director
2. Rakesh 04/04/2024 Non- 03386665 5 4 2 -- 1#
Kaul Executive
3. Gagan 27/05/2024 | Whole- Time | 10423472 5 4 1 -- 1#
Aggarwal Director
4. Vikram 11/02/2022 Non- 08769167 5 3 -- -- --
Rathi** Executive
5. Kaushik 17/02/2021 Non- 08303198 5 5 1 -- --
Ramakrishn Executive
an¥ork
6. Aditya 07/03/2025 Non- 02408452 5 -- 6 -- --
Gupta Executive

*Resigned w.e.f. 04/04/2024
**Resigned w.e.f. 06/09/2024
*ekResigned w.e.f. 19/03/2025
# Share held as nominee of the holding company
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Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year.

S. No. Name of Director Capacity Nature of Change Effective Date
1. Aparna Bihany Non-Executive Resignation 04/04/2024
2. Rakesh Kaul Non-Executive Appointment 04/04/2024
3. Gagan Aggarwal Whole Time Director Appointment 27/05/2024
4. Vikram Rathi Non-Executive Resignation 06/09/2024
5. Aditya Gupta Non-Executive Appointment 07/03/2025
6. Kaushik Ramakrishnan Non-Executive Resignation 19/03/2025
Note:

1. None of the Directors holds office as a director, including alternate director, in more than twenty (20) Companies at the same
time. None of them hold directorships in more than ten (10) Public Companies. For reckoning the limit of Public Companies,
directorships of Private Companies that are either Holding or Subsidiary Company of a Public Company are included.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s performance and business strategy. During
the financial year, the Board of Directors met 6 (Six) times i.c., on 4% April 2024, 27t May 2024, 06t September 2024,
23t October 2024, 18 December 2024 and 19t March 2025. The gap between two meetings was less than one hundred
and twenty days as required under Section 173 of the Act.

The details of Board, its meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

S. Name of Director Capacity Total No. of Attendance during No. of shares
No. Meeting Held the meeting held in company

1. Aparna Bihany* - 6 -- --

2. Rakesh Kaul Non- 6 4 1
Executive

3. Gagan Aggarwal Whole Time 6 4 i
Director

4. Vikram Rathi** -- 6 3 --

5. Aditya Gupta Non- 6 - -
Executive

6. Kaushik -- 6 5 --

Ramakrishnan***

* Resigned w.e.f. 04/04/2024

**Resigned w.e.f. 06/09/2024

*i+Resigned w.e.f. 19/03/2025

# Shates are held as nominee of the holding company
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MINUTES OF BOARD/COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Minutes of proceedings of Board and Committee meetings are recorded and draft minutes are circulated to
Board/Committee members for their comments and/or confirmation within 15 days from the date of the meeting. The
inputs, if any, of the Board & Committee Members are duly incorporated in the minutes after which these are entered in
the minute book within 30 days from the date of meeting,

BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES
I. AUDIT COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 177(1) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Boards and its Powers) Rules,
2014 and Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023 as applicable, the Board had constituted Audit Committee. The members of Audit Committee met five
(5) times during the period under review i.e., on 04 April 2024, 27t May 2024, 06t September 2024, 18" December
2024 and 19t March 2025.

The details of Committee membership, its meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

S.No. | Name of Director | Member of Capacity Total No. | Attendance No. of
Committee of during the shares held
Since Meetings meetings in company
Held
1. Aparna Bihany* = - 5 - =
2. Rakesh Kaul 04/04/2024 Member 5 4 1#
3. Gagan Aggarwal 06/09/2024 Member 5 2 1#
4, Vikram Rathi** - - 5 3 -
5. Aditya Gupta 19/03/2025 Member 5 = =
6. Kaushik = = 5 4 =
Ramakrishnan***

* Resigned w.e.f. 04/04/2024

*fResigned w.e.f. 06/09/2024

*i+Resigned wee.f. 19/03/2025

# Shates are held as nominee of the holding company

All the Members have the ability to read and understand financial statements and have relevant finance and / or audit
experience.

Terms of reference
The composition of the Audit Committee, its authority, role, responsibilities and powers and reporting functions are in
accordance with the Act and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). The responsibilities of the Audit
Committee, inter alia, include:
e To review the financial reporting process, the system of internal financial controls, the audit process, the Company’s
process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the Code of Conduct of the Company;

e To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company and discuss
with Auditors the nature and scope of their audit before commencement;

e To review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of Audit process;

e To examine the financial statement, financial results and the Auditors’ report thereon;

e To approve transactions or any subsequent modification to the transactions of the Company with related parties;
e To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments;

e To approve payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory Auditors;

e To evaluate internal financial controls;

11
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e To review the performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control systems;

e To review findings of internal investigations, frauds, irregularities etc. and

e To review Internal Audit Plan/ Calendar etc.

II. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) the
Board has constituted the NRC. The Committee met once during the year on 27™ May 2024.

The composition of the NRC, details of meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. | Attendance | No. of shares held
No. Director Committee of during the in company
Since Meetings meetings
Held
1. Aparna Bihany* -- - 1 -- --
2. Rakesh Kaul 04/04/2024 Member 1 1 1#
3. Gagan Aggarwal 06/09/2024 Member 1 - 1#
4. Vikram Rathi** - - 1 1 -
5. Aditya Gupta 19/03/2025 - 1 = -
0. Kaushik -- - 1 1 -
Ramakrishnan***

* Resigned w.e.f. 04/04/2024
*Resigned w.e.f. 06/09/2024
*i+Resigned w.e.f. 19/03/2025

# Shates are held as nominee of the holding company

Terms of reference

The responsibilities of the NRC, inter alia, include:

To ensure 'fit and propet' status of proposed/ existing directors.

e To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in

accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

e To specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual directors.

III.

Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

ASSET AND LIABILITY COMMITTEE

Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

In accordance with the requirement of Reserve Bank of India guidelines on Asset - Liability Management (ALM) System,
the Board has constituted Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). The ALCO Committee met Four (4) times, during the
year on 27t June 2024, 26" September 2024, 30t December 2024 and on 04t March 2025.

The Committee Membership, meeting details and attendance are detailed thereunder:

S. No. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. Attendance No. of shares
Director Committee of during the held in
Since Meetings meetings company
Held
1. Rakesh Kaul 06/09/2021 Member 4 3 1
2. Gagan Aggarwal 23/12/2022 Member 4 4 1#
3. Vikram Rathi* 06/09/2021 Member 4 3 -
Other Members
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4. Vijagkumar 27/06,/2022 Membet 4 2 -
Ramakrishna

5. Dhariya Parikh 07/03/2019 Member 4 4 -

6. Ruchika Sharma 11/06/2019 Member 4 4 =

7. Naman Jain 18/11/2021 Member 4 4 =

8. Ankit Aggarwal 29/03/2022 Member 4 4 --

9. Shivam Miglani** 23/12/2022 Member 4 1 -

*Resigned w.e.f. 06 September, 2024
**Resigned w.e.f. 30® August, 2024
# Shares are held as nominee of the holding company

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the ALCO Committee, inter alia, include:

e Adherence to the risk tolerance/ limits set by the Board

Implementing the liquidity risk management strategy of the NBFC

Decision on desired maturity profile and mix of incremental assets and liabilities,
Sale of assets as a source of funding,

The structure, responsibilities, and controls for managing liquidity risk, and

Overseeing the liquidity positions of all branches
e Trading risk management

IV. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

As per the requirement of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023, the Board has, for monitoring legal risks and mitigating the risks, and regular review of
changes in the regulatory framework, constituted the Risk Management Committee (RMC). The RMC met four (4) times,
on 20t May 2024, 30t July 2024, 13*» November 2024 and 29t January 2025, during the Financial Year.

The composition of the Committee, the details of meeting and attendance are as under:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. Attendance No. of shares
No. Director Committee of Meetings | during the held in
since Held meetings company
1. Aparna Bihany* - - 4 - -
2. Rakesh Kaul 04/04/2024 Member 4 1 1#
3. Gagan Aggarwal 06/09/2024 Member 4 3% 1#
4. Vikram Rathi** - - 4 2 -
5. Aditya Gupta 19/03/2025 Member 4 -- -
6. Kaushik - - 4 3 --
Ramakrishnan***

* Resigned w.e.f. 04/04/2024
*fResigned w.e.f. 06/09/2024
*k+Resigned w.e.f. 19/03/2025
$ Attended meeting dated 20/05/2024 as an Invitee

# Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee, inter alia, include:

adeﬂuacz of risk management szstems;

To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks
associated with the business of the Company;

To formulate, monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the
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To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering the
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations and
actions to be taken;

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to review
by the Risk Management Committee.

Approving a framework to evaluate the risks and materiality of all existing and prospective outsourcing and the
policies that apply to such arrangements;

Laying down appropriate approval authorities for outsourcing depending on risks and materiality;

Setting up suitable administrative framework of senior management for the purpose of these directions;

Undertaking regular review of outsourcing strategies and arrangements for their continued relevance, and safety
and soundness and

Deciding on business activities of a material nature to be outsourced and approving such arrangements
To review of material outsourcing records on half-yearly basis.

IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Company has formulated I'T Strategy Committee in compliance with the requirements of Reserve Bank of India
(“RBI”), Master Circular - Information Technology framework for NBFC sector and other applicable RBI Regulations.
The scope of the Committee inter alia, includes review and approval of IT strategy and policy documents, information
security and any other matter related to I'T governance. The Committee met four (4) times during the financial year, i.e.
on 28 June 2024, 17t September 2024, 12 December 2024 and 21st March 2025.

The Composition of the Committee, the details of meeting and attendance are as under:

S. Name of Director Member of Capacity | Total No. of | Attendance No. of
No. Committee Meetings during the shares held
Since Held meetings in
company

1 Rakesh Kaul 27/09/2021 Member 4 3 1#

2 Gagan Aggarwal 06/09/2024 Member 4 3 1#

3. Kaushik - - 4 1 -

Ramakrishnan*

4. Aditya Gupta 19/03/2025 Member 4 - -

5. Vikram Rathi** = == 4 4 —

6. T. Prakash Shetty 09/03/2021 Member 4 4 1#

7. Vijay Kumar 17/03/2022 Member 4 4 -

Ramakrishna

*Resigned w.e.f. 19/03/2025
*fResigned w.e.f. 30/04/2025
# Shates are held as nominee of the holding company.

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the IT Strategy Committee, inter alia, include:

To identify system deficiencies and defects at the system design, development and testing phases

To provide oversight and monitoring of the progress of the project, including deliverables to be realized at each
phase of the project and milestones to be reached according to the project timetable.
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of location, day, date and time of the General Meetings held during the last three years and resolutions passed

there at are given below.

CL>X

Financial Type & Location Day, Date & Time Summary of Special Business passed
Year
2024-25 Annual General Meeting Day — Friday -Appointment of Mr. Rakesh Kaul as
Video conferencing (VC) /[Date — 27% September, 2024  [Director.
Other Audio Visual means Time — 3:00 PM
(OAVM) / (e-AGM) -Appointment of Mr. Gagan Aggarwal as
Director.
-Appointment of Mr. Gagan Aggarwal as
Whole-Time Director.
2023-24 Annual General Meeting Day — Friday -Appointment of Ms. Aparna Bihany as a
Video conferencing (VC) /Date — 29t September, 2023  [Director.
Other Audio Visual means Time — 3:00 PM
(OAVM) / (e-AGM) -Appointment of Ms. Aparna Bihany as a
Whole-Time Director.
Extra Ordinary General MeetingDay — Wednesday -Increase in Authorized Capital and
Video conferencing (VC) /Date — 19th July, 2023 amendment in Capital Clause of AOA.
Other Audio Visual means Time — 5:00 PM
(OAVM) / (e-AGM)
2022-23 Annual General Meeting Day — Friday -Regularization of Additional Director Mr.
Video conferencing (VC) /Date - 30t September, 2022 [Vikram Rathi as a Director of the
Other Audio Visual means Time - 12 Noon Company.
(OAVM) / (e-AGM)
-Approval of Related Party Transaction
with Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Attendance of each director at the last annual general meeting:

Members Presence in the meeting
Kaushik Ramakrishnan* --
Vikram Rathi** Present
Aparna Bihany*** NA
Rakesh Kaul --
Gagan Aggarwal -
Aditya Gupta NA

*Resigned w.e.f. 19/03/2025
*fResigned w.e.f. 06/09/2024
wik Resigned w.e.f. 04/04/2024
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25 -

DATE, TIME, AND VENUE

Day: Friday

Date: September 25, 2025

Time: 03:00 PM

Venue: The Company will conduct the meeting through VC / OAVM, relevant details of which have been provided in
the notice of AGM.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through its circulars Nos. 20/2020, 02/2021, 19/2021, 21/2021, 2/2022,
09/2023 and 09/2024 issued by the MCA and Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2022/62 issued by SEBI
(collectively referred to as ‘Circulars’), has allowed the Companies to hold AGM through VC/OAVM up to September
30, 2025 and send financial statements (including Board’s report, Auditors’ Report and other documents to be attached
therewith) through email.

Accordingly, the Annual Report of the Company for FY 2025 along with the Notice of AGM are being sent by email to
the members and all other persons/entities entitled to receive the same. As stated above, 9 AGM of the Company will
be convened through VC or OAVM.

FINANCIAL YEAR

The Financial Year of the Company starts from 1t April of a year and ends on 315t March of the following year.
PLANT LOCATIONS: Not Applicable

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has in 2018 mandated Dematerialization

of shares for all Unlisted Public Companies. However, as per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014, wholly owned subsidiaries were exempt from the requirement.

The Company being wholly owned subsidiary of Clix Capital Services Private Limited has its shares in physical format
only. The transfer and transmission request and dealing with the Shareholders is handled in house by the Company.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 315" MARCH 2025

S. No. Name of the equity No. of equity | % age Nature of Ownership
shareholder Share held

1 Clix Capital Services Pvt. Ltd. 55,199,994 100 Holding Company
2 Santwana Periwal 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
3 Vikram Rathi* 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
4 Gagan Aggarwal 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
5 Sanjay Rajpal 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
6 Rakesh Kaul 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
7 T Prakash Shetty 1 - Nominee of Holding Company

*Share transferred to Mr. Ramdas Achatrya on 30% April, 2025.

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Shareholders/investors can correspond with the Company at the following address:
Registered Office:

The Company has shifted its registered office to another place within the same state and the registered office of the
company is now located at:
W2/14, First Floor, West Patel Nagar, New Delhi- 110008
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Corporate Office Address:
6th Floor, Good Earth Business Bay-2, Sector 58, Gurugram, 122102

CREDIT RATINGS
No credit rating has been obtained by the company post 30t September, 2023.

DATES OF BOOK CLOSURE
Not Applicable

DIVIDEND PAYMENT

During the period under review, the Board does not recommend payment of any Dividend on the Equity Shares.

NOMINATION POLICY

Provision of Section 72 of the Act, read with rule 19(1) of the rules made thereunder extends nomination facility to the
individuals holding shares in the physical form. To help the legal heirs / successors get the shares transmitted in their
favor, shareholder(s) are requested to furnish the particulars of their nomination in the prescribed Nomination Form.

UPDATE YOUR CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS/ BANK
MANDATE/ EMAIL ID

To ensure all communications/ monetary benefits received promptly, all shareholders holding shates in physical form
are requested to notify to the Company, change in their address / bank details / email ID instantly by written request
under the signatures of sole/ first joint holder.

QUOTE FOLIO NO. / DP ID NO.

Shareholders/Beneficial Owners are requested to quote their Folio Nos., in all correspondence with the Company.
Shareholders ate also requested to quote their Email IDs, Contact/Fax numbers (landline/ cell phone) for prompt reply
to their correspondence.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION
AND PROTECTION FUND

No dividend has been declared by the Company since its inception and thus, no amount was required to be transferred,
on account of unclaimed dividend, to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

The provisions related to the electronic voting are not applicable to the Company.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Particulars Details

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions | There are no material related party transactions during
that may have potential conflict with the interests of listed | the year under review that have potential conflict with
entity at large. the interest of the Company

Details of non-compliance by the Company with requirement | Nil
of the Act, penalties, strictures imposed on entity by Reserve
Bank or any statutory authority.
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Details of proceedings under Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code

No such application has been made or any proceeding is
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 during the financial year under review.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company does not fall under the requirement of
Sec. 135 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions related to
Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable on the
Company.

Details of difference between amount of the valuation done
at the time of one time settlement and the valuation done
while taking loan from the Banks / Financial Institutions-

Not Applicable

Web link where policy on dealing with related party
transactions.

The Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party
Transactions which is also available on Company's

website, the link to which is Related Party Policy .

Loans and advances in the natute of loans to firms/companies
in which directors are interested by name and amount

Nil

Remuneration paid to the directors

Nil

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 & Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

The total employee strength of the Company is less than
10, thus, the provisions of Prevention of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace Act, 2013 and
Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 are not applicable.

For and on behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Date: 11t August, 2025 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Gagan Aggarwal Rakesh Kaul
Whole-time Director Director

DIN: 10423472

DIN: 03386665
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ANNEXURE- II

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

NBFCs have emerged as integral components of India’s financial ecosystem, consistently registering higher credit
growth compared to Scheduled Commercial Banks (SCBs) in recent years. Their deep understanding of regional
markets, coupled with tailored financial products and services, has significantly contributed to advancing financial
inclusion across the countty.

NBFCs distinguish themselves through lower transaction costs, innovative offerings, swift decision-making processes,
customer-centric approaches, and efficient service delivery.

The increasing relevance of NBFCs is evident in the steady rise of their credit as a percentage of GDP, as well as in
the growing volume of credit extended by SCBs to the NBFC sector.

INDIA’S HOUSING SECTOR

India’s housing sector is undergoing a profound transformation, driven by rapid urbanization, shifting consumer
preferences, and enabling government policies. As a key contributor to the national economy, the sector is poised for
sustained growth in the coming years.

Demand for residential properties remains robust across both affordable and premium segments, supported by
increasing urban migration and rising income levels. Nonetheless, challenges such as affordability constraints and
escalating property prices continue to pose batriers, underscoring the importance of innovative financing mechanisms
and targeted government interventions.

The sector is also witnessing a growing integration of technology and sustainable construction practices, which are
enhancing transparency, operational efficiency, and environmental responsibility. In this evolving landscape, housing
finance companies are strategically positioned to meet emerging market demands through customized financial
solutions and digital engagement strategies.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

India’s housing sector continues to benefit from rapid urbanization and growing population, which are driving
sustained demand across both affordable and premium segments. Government initiatives such as the Pradhan Mantri
Awas Yojana (PMAY), along with large-scale infrastructure development projects, are playing a vital role in supporting
sectoral growth and enhancing affordability for prospective homebuyers.

The increasing adoption of advanced construction technologies and digital solutions is creating opportunities for
improved efficiency, cost optimization, and the development of innovative housing models, including smart and
environmentally sustainable homes.

Despite these positive trends, the sector faces several risks. Economic volatility may affect borrowers’ repayment
capacity, potentially leading to higher default rates. Rapid regulatory changes—such as adjustments in interest rate
policies or lending norms—can disrupt business operations and necessitate agile responses. Additionally, market
saturation in major urban centers may constrain growth, prompting companies to explore emerging regions that may
present lower but untapped demand potential.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

As a housing finance company, the organization is exposed to a range of financial, operational, market, regulatory, and
compliance risks, making robust risk management practices essential. To address these challenges, the Company has
implemented a comprehensive risk management and audit framework designed to identify, assess, monitor, and
mitigate both internal and external risks.

In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India’s guidelines for Non-Deposit Taking Systemically Important (NDSI)
companies, the Company has established a Board-approved Risk Management Policy (RMC). This policy outlines the
principles for effective credit risk oversight, ensuring that credit exposures are appropriately identitied and managed.

Additionally, the Company has constituted an Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO), responsible for
overseeing liquidity and interest rate risks. This committee plays a critical role in maintaining financial stability and
ensuring alignment with regulatory requirements and strategic objectives.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has established a robust internal control system designed to ensure adherence to corporate policies and
procedures, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and the accuracy, reliability, and completeness of
management information and financial reporting. These controls also play a critical role in the prevention and
detection of fraud and errors, as well as in safeguarding the Company’s assets from unauthorized use or disposition.

This internal control framework is reinforced through comprehensive internal audits, periodic management reviews,
and standardized policies and guidelines that support the integrity of financial and operational records. The Audit
Committee of the Board actively reviews internal audit reports to assess the effectiveness of the control environment
and ensure compliance with regulatory requirements. The Committee also provides strategic oversight, offers
recommendations, and monitors the implementation of corrective actions to strengthen governance and risk
mitigation practices.

Adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements

The Company has in place adequate internal controls with reference to Financial Statements and operations and the
same are operating effectively. The internal financial controls are commensurate with the size, scale, and complexity
of operations.

The Internal Auditors tested the design and effectiveness of the key controls and no material weaknesses were
observed in their examination. Further, Statutory Auditors verified the systems and processes and confirmed that the

Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporting are adequate and such controls are operating effectively as
of March 31, 2025.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

To ensure a transparent, convenient, and seamless experience, the Company has established a dedicated customer
service team supported by streamlined operations and a robust technology infrastructure. This helps in prompt
responsiveness and helps maintain high standards of service delivery.

The Company is working towards digital communication Continuous customer feedback, and operational

transparency as core pillars of customer engagement strategy. The Company is readying itself for proactive approach
of service delivery once the customer base increases.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company reported a Profit After Tax (PAT) of X 8,466 (in thousands),
compared to X 22,676 (in thousands) in the previous financial year.
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As of March 31, 2025, the Company’s loan book stood at X 6,61,892 (in thousands), reflecting an increase from
6,40,131 (in thousands) as of March 31, 2024. The Company maintained cash and cash equivalents of X 7,430 (in
thousands) as on March 31, 2025, compared to X 9,179 thousand in the previous year.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company ensures that provisions of various Labour Laws, other employment regulations are duly complied and
met with.

The Company as on closure of financial year did not had big number of employees. However, plan has been put in
place for hiring in next financial year and appropriate processes are being adopted to ensure full compliance with
applicable labour laws and employment regulations. The Company is committed to maintain a lawful, ethical, and
responsible work environment. As on 315t March, 2025, the Company had a total number of five employees.

For and on behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Date: 11 August, 2025 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Gagan Aggarwal Rakesh Kaul
Whole-time Director Director

DIN: 10423472 DIN: 03386665
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~. COMPANY SECRETARIES
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CLIX HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN: U65999DL2016PLC308791
W2/14, 1st Floor, West Patel Nagar,
Central Delhi, New Delhi, India, 110008

We report that:

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by CLIX HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
(hereinafter referred as ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Company’s Responsibilities

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the maintenance of
Secretarial record under the Companies Act, 2013 and compliance of the provisions of
Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards. Further the Company’s
management and the Board of Directors are also responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate systems and process, commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
identify, monitor and ensure compliances with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

Auditor’s Responsibilities Statement

Our responsibility is only to examine and verify those compliances on a test basis and express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices followed by us provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company, however where ever required, we have obtained the Management
representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Principle office:
D-38, LGF (L/S), South Extension, Part-lI

New Delhi - 110049, India
+91 11 49121644,49121645
pcs@vkcindia.com, www.vkcindia.com



Limitations

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls,
there 1s an unavoidable risk that some Misstatements or material non-compliances may not be
detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the

Secretarial Auditing Standards as prescribed by Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI).

Further, we conducted the secretarial audit by examining the secretarial records including
minutes, documents, registers, other records and returns related to the applicable laws on the
Company etc. made available to us. The management has confirmed that the records submitted
to us are the true and correct. We have also relied upon representation given by the management
of the Company for certain areas which otherwise requires physical verification.

Basis of Opinion

We have followed the audit practices, secretarial auditing standards and processes as were
applicable and appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents
of the Secretarial records. The verification in some cases were done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. We also believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Report on Secretarial Records and Compliances made thereunder

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(il) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings: Not Applicable

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (PthlhltLO.ll of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable oS
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(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations(LODR), 2015; Not Applicable

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021: Not Applicable

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue And Listing Of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; Not applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to issue
and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under review.

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares)
Regulations, 2021, - Not Applicable

(1)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations,
2018; - Not Applicable

vi. The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 rules,
regulations, master-directions and guidelines made issued thereunder as are specifically
applicable to Housing Finance Company on test basis and relying upon the
representation made by the Company and its officers for the system and mechanism
framed by the Company for compliances made thereunder and the Company is
generally regular in fillings with National Housing Bank (NHB).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following: -
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i1) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges; - Not
Applicable

Based on our examination and verification of records produced to us and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Company, in our opinion, during the period
under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Standards, Master Circular/ Directions and Guidelines etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice(s) have been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and
Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven
days in advance and, in case of shorter notice, compliance as required under the Act has been
made by the Company and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have been carried out with requisite
majority of the members of the Board or committees as the case may be. Further there is no
case of views of the dissenting members as per the recordings jn’; 1€ mmutcs of the meetings
of the Board or Committee(s) thereof. (85
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We further report that there are adequate systems and process in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliances with the
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has the following specific
events/actions having major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, standards & guidelines, if any, as may be referred to above:

i.

ii.

1il.

1v.

During the preceding Financial Years, the Board of the Company in their meeting held on
30" May, 2022, had in principally approved the merger and the draft scheme of the
amalgamation of the Company with its Holding Company i.e. Clix Capital Services
Private Limited (CCSPL). Thereafter, the said Scheme was also approved by the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) and the National Housing Bank (NHB). Further, the Company had
also issued notices (CAA-9) to the regulators and filed the declaration of solvency (CAA-
10) pursuant to Section 233 of the Act read with rule 25(1) & (2) of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements, and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

Subsequently, as informed by the management the Company has decided not to proceed
with the amalgamation and has proposed to revive the business operations of the Company
subject to compliance of regulatory norms of the NHB.

Mr. Gagan Aggarwal has been appointed as Whole Time Director (WTD) of the Company
for a period of five years, w.e.f. 27™ May, 2024.

Mr. Aditya Gupta was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 7"
March, 2025 with the prior approval of Reserve Bank of India.

The Company continued to be classified as a Housing Finance Company (HFC) in
accordance with the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021. As informed by the management, to
ensure compliance with the Principal Business Criteria (PBC) stipulated therein, the
Company acquired housing loan pools from other registered NBFC’s during the reporting
period.

FOR VKC/& ASSOCIATES
(Company|Secretaries)

=~ Unique Code: P2018DE077000

HIT K DIXIT

/ CS
Partner

FCS No. 12361

C P No. 17827

UDIN: FO12361G000461711

Date: 27" May, 2025 Peer Review Certificate: 6406/2025
Place: New Delhi
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Ravi Rajon & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Clix Housing Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Clix Housing Finance Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements including a summary of material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner
s0 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2025, its profit/loss (including other comprehensive income), its changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director's report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The Director's report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report. Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under
the relevant laws and regulations.

505-A, 5" Floor, Rectangle 1, District Centre, Saket, New Dethi- 110047
Phone: +21-11-40548860-62, ravirajar avigroup.com, ravirajan.co@gmail.com
Web.: www.ravirajan.co.in
{Ravi Rajan & Co LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identily No. AAP-3344)}




Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management‘s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based




conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The numbers and details pertaining to previous year ended as at March 31, 2024 and notes related thereto
in the Statement have been traced from the Financial Statements of the Company audited by DMKH & CO.,
Chartered Accountants (‘the erstwhile auditors’), vide their unmaodified report dated May 27, 2024.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Govemment of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in "Annexure 1%, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the boaks of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in *Annexure
2%

g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:




(3) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

(i) The Company did not have anu long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company;

(iv)

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entfity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on such audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) of clause 3, as provided above, contain any material
misstatement.

(v} The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the
compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of
recording audit trail (audit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

For Ravi Rajan & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reglstratlon No.

QOTSNINSO%

Partner: Neeraj Agarwal
Membership No.: 521845
UDIN: 25521845BMJAIWT7941
Place: Delhi

Date: 27-05-202




ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in the
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Clix Housing Finance Limited (“the Company”) on
the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information, explanations and written
representation given to us by the management and the books of account and other records examined by us
in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(@)

(c)

(d)

(b)

(a)

(b)

The Company did not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and accordingly, reporting under
clause (i)(a)(a) and (i)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The title deeds of the immovable properties which are “held for sale” (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of lessee) disclosed
in the Ind AS financial statements are not held in the name of the Company. Details of such assets
are given below:

Description Gross carrying| Held in Whether Period Reason for not
value (in Rs the promoter, held being held in
of property thousands) name of director or
their name of Company
relative or
employee
Buildings 5,493* Multiple No 1-3 years| The Company has
(Residential borrowers [4 Repossessed
properties under
Flats) Nos] SARFEASI  Act,
[4 Nos] 2002 taken as

collateral against

loans given 1o
customers.

*Gross Carrying Value — Cost to Sell = Net Carrying Value (5,493 — 1,972 = 3,520)

The Company did not have any Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) during
the year; hence question of revaluation does not arise. The Company has not revalued its Intangible
Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The Company is in the business of non-banking financial services consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not obtained any sanctioned working capital limit at any point of time during the
year from banks and/or financial institutions, on the basis of security of current assets. Therefore,
reporting under clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company's principal business is to give loans and therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments giade
and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans are not prejudicial to the Company’s ir{e



()

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, we report that the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular except for certain instances as below:

Qutstanding of overdue loans as on March 31, 2025 (Rs. in thousands)

Particulars - Days Past Due| Principal & Interest Overdue| No. of Cases
1-30 30.287 24
31-90 70.636 27
More than 90 83248 25
Total 1,54;071 90

In respect of the aforesaid loans and advances in the nature of loans, the details of amount which is
overdue for more than ninety days is as below:

No. of Principal Overdue Remarks
Cases (Rs. in thousands)
25 63,248 Necessary steps have been taken by
the Company for recovery of the principal.

Since the Company's principal business is to give loans, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(e) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of Section 185 are not applicable to the Company as the Company has not provided
any loans to Directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested. Further the
provisions of Section 186 are not applicable to the Company being a Housing Finance Company,
as itis engaged in the business of providing loans.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 fo 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under
clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the products
of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services tax (GST), provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material
statutory dues applicable to it.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

As per records produced before us and according to the information and explanations given to us
there are no dues of Income-tax, Goods & Services Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except as mentioned
below:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount Amount paid | Period to | Forum where

statute dues (Rs.)* under protest | which the | dispute is
(Rs.) amount pending

relates

Goods and | Goeds and | 38,63,536 1,90,269 2018-19 Appellate

Service Tax | Service Tribunal

Act, 2017 Tax

Goods and | Goods and | 5,74,248 29,702 2019-20 Appellate

Service Tax | Service Tribunal

Act, 2017 Tax (P

"The above-mentioned amount includes interest and penalty.
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(d)

(e)

(a}

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across any
transactions not recorded in the books of accounts which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause (ix)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds have been
raised on short-term basis.

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the Company does not
have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, accordingly reporting under clause (ix)(e) and (ix)(f) of
paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer/further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore, reporting
under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the
Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year nor have we
been informed of any such instance by the management.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by the
auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report.

There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and upto the date
of this report.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our apinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

We have considered the Internal Audit Report of the Company issued till date, for the period under
audit.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company.




(a) As per the information and explanations provided to us and based on the overall operations of the
Company, the Company is not required to obtain registration under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act.

(b) The Company has a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the National Housing Bank (NHB)
under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act 1987, for conducting Housing Finance
activities.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly,
reporting under clause (xvi)(c) and (d) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly reporting
under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which cause us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of this audit report and that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under
clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For Ravi Rajan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No.

009073N/N500320 dp,,g_n.Q

ﬂ\ aATH Q?] 5
Partner: Neeraj Agarwal

Membership No.: 521845

UDIN: 25521845BMJAIVW7941

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-05-2025




ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2(i) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in our
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Clix Housing Finance Limited on the Ind AS
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Clix Housing Finance
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for  our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements. S




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference
to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31,
2025, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the Guidance Note).

For Ravi Rajan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.
009073N/N500320

Jreses Py

Partner: Neeraj Aggarwal
Membership No.: 521845
UDIN: 25521845BMJAIWT7941

Place: Delhi
Date: 27-05-2025




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at 21 March 2025

{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
Notes
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents S5A 7430 9,179
Bank balance ather than above 58 18,234 17,280
Leans 6 634,646 615,743
Inyastments 7 17,857 16,287
Other financial assets 8 §2,103 105,295
Non- financal assets
Current tax assets (net) 2,858 10,106
Deferred tax assets (net) 28 6,467 9,627
Other Intangible assets 1 8,705 10,185
Other non- financial assets i0 14,866 14,132
Assets held for sale aii) 3,520 13,185
Total assets 796,686 821,719
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables 11
Trade Payables
a) Total outstanding dugs of micre enterprises and smail 233 1,341
enterprises
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro 3,655 5,141
enterprises and small enterprises
I} Other Payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - 5
enterprises
b) tote! outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 29,143 16,945
enterprises and small enterprises
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 12 145,789 175,971
Other financial liabilities 13 7,787 22,127
Provisions 14 1,398 1,119
Other non-financial Lizbitilies 15 362 797
Total liabilites 188,427 223,441
Equity
Equity share capital 16 552,000 552,000
Other equity 17 56,259 46,278
Total Equity 608,259 598,278
Total liabilites and Equity 796,686 821,719
Material accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an intagral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Ravi Rajan & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors of
Chartered Accountants Clix Housing Finance Limited
ICAl Firm Regjstration No. 009073N/?
Neeraj Aggarwal Rakesh lca'nf""-_?_f‘ Gagan Aggarwal
FPartner Director Director
Membership Mo.: 521845 DIN: 03386665 DIN: 10423472

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

Chief Financial

Place: Gurugram
Dgte: 27 May 2025

Company Secretary
Membership No: A17923

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025



Clix Housing Finance Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for the period ending 31 March 2025
(Al amaunt in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Revenue from operations

Interest Income 18 48,573 103,643
Fees and commission Income 19 1,377 7,068
Net gain on fair value changes 20 4,012 3,450
Net gain on derscognition of financial instruments under
amortised cost category = 10,147
Total revenue from operations 53,962 124,314
ther Income 21 2,340 791
Total Income 57,302 125,106
Expenses
Finance Costs 22 156,523 52,952
Faas and commission expense 23 453 1,633
Impairment on financial instruments 24 5,114 12,367
Emploves Benefits Expense 25 10,927 10,844
Amertization 8 1,479 1479
Other axpenses 26 10,885 16,636
Total Expenses 45,581 95,911
Profit before tax 11,721 29,195
Tax Expense: 27
(1) Current tax . -
(2) Current tax for earlier years - [(128)
{3) Deferred tax charge / [credit) 3,633 6,647
{4) Deferred tax for earlier years (378) -
Profit for the year 8,466 22,676
Other Comprehensive Income
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability {376} (119)
Income Tax Effect 85 30
B. ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss = -
Other Comprehensive Income , net of income tax (281) (23)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 8,185 22,587
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10/- each 28
Basic (INR) 015 0.41
Diluted {INR) 0.15 0.41
Nominal value per share {INR} 10.00 10.00
Material accounting policies 3

The accampanying notés are an integrai part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Ravi Rajan & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Clix Housing Finance Limited

ICA| Firm Registration Ne. D09073N/N500320 W
=3

Neeraj Aggarwal Rakesh Kaul Gagan Aggarwal
Partner Director Directar
Membership No.: 521845 DIN: 03386665 DIN: 10423472

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025

Flace: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025
Amit Kumar Jain
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Dgta: 27 May 2025
<

Company Secretary
Membership No: A17923

A

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025 Date: 27 May 2025



Clix Housing Finance Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Alf amount in INR thousonds, except for share data unless stated otherwfse)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year endad
31 March 2024

Cash fiow from eperating activities
Profit before tax
Adjusted for:

Met gain on fair value ehanges
Interest on Inter Corporate Loans

Share based payment

Prowvision for employee benefic
Impairment on financial instruments
Amartization

Interest on income-tax refund
Interest income on fixed depasits
Operating profit before working capital changes

Adfusted for net changes in working copital
Decrease in financial aszers and other assets
Decrease in finandial liabilities and other liabilities
Taxes (paid)/refund received (net)

Net Cash generated from operating octivities

Cash flows from investing activities

Movement in mutual funds (net)

Investment in fixed deposits more than 90 days maturity
Interest income on fixed deposits

Net Cash generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activitias

Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital

Proceeds from Inter Corporate Loan

Repayment of Inter Corporate Loan

Mavement in Non Convertible Debentures

Repayment of Barrowing against Securitised Portfolio (Met)
Net Cash generated from/f{used in) financing cctivities

Net {decrease] / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes :
Components of cash and cash equivalents balance include:
Balancas with banks:
- Current accounts
-Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemants

As perour report of even date

For Ravi Rajan & Co. LLP
Charterad Accountarts
ICAI Firm Registration No, 00907 3M/N50032 f

Neeraj Aggarwal
Partner
Membership Mo.: 521845

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025

11,721 29,195
(4,012) (3,450)
6 :
1,796 749
(279) {181)
5,314 12,367
1,479 1,479
(414) {217)
(1,079} {961)
14,532 38,981
7,908 560,321
(4,929) (58,988)
7,661 14,512)
25,172 535,802
3,182 2,653
{955) (1,908)
1,079 961
3,266 1,706
% 2,000
23,000 205,940
x (205,940)
= (408,253}
(53,187} [132,742)
{30,187) (536,995)
(1,748} 512
9,179 8,667
7.430 9,179
7,430 9,179
7,430 9,179

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Clix Housing Finance Limited

W/&

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

Company Secretary
Membership Mo: A17923

Place: Gurugram
Diate: 27 May 2025



Clix Housing Finance Limited

statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(A1l amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated atherwise)

a. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at 1 April 2024 Changes in Equity | Restated balance Changes in Balance as at 31 March 2025
Share Capital due | asatl April 2024 equity share
ta prior period capital during
errors the current year
552,000 5 - - 552,000
Balance as at 1 April 2023 Changes in Equity | Restated balance Changes in |Balance as at 31 March 2024
Share Capital due | asat 1 April 2023 equity share
to prior petiod capital during
Erroers the current year
550,000 = & 2,000 552,000
b. Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other Total
Share based Statutory reserve | Retained earning | Comprehensive
payment reserve income
Balance at 1st April 2024 2,241 22,342 19,308 2,387 46,278
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 8,466 - 2,466
Remeasurements of defined benefit hiability - - (281) (281)
ESOP cost for the year 1,796 - - - 1,796
Share Based Payments - - 2 = =
Transfer out of Reserves - 1,711 (1,711} - -
Transfer to Reserves 2,106 {2,106) -
|Balance at 31st March 2025 4,037 24,053 28,169 - 56,259
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other Total
Share based Statutory reserve | Retained earning | Comprehensive
payment reserve Income
Balance at 1st April 2023 1,432 17,825 1,149 2,476 22,942
Profit/{Lass) for the year - - 22,675 - 22,676
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability - . . (89) (89)
ESOP cost for the year 1,250 - - - 1,250
Share Based Payments (502) - - - (501)
Transfer out of Reserves - 4,517 (4,517) - -
Balance at 31st March 2024 2,241 22,342 19,308 2,387 46,278

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Ravi Rajan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Me. Q0Z073N/NS0032
Meeraj Aggarwal

Partner
Membership Mo.: 521845

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025

Rakesh Kaul
Director
DIN: D3386665

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

Amit Kumar Jain

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

=

Chief Financial Offfcer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

Gagan Aggarwal
Director
DIN; 10423472

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025

i

Company Secretory
Membership Mo: A17923

Flace: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025



Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(&l amaunt in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Corporate information

Clix Housing Finanee Limited is a public limited company {w.e.f 20 September 2020} domiciled in India and incarporated on 2 Detember 2016 under the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 with CIN-UB5999DL2016PLC308781. The Company is 8 whally owned subsidiary of Clix Capital Services Private Limited. The
Company s classified under middle layer a5 per scale based framework applicable fram 01 Gctaber 2022. The Company has received certification of registration
dated 18 August 2017 from Mational Housing Bank ('NHB') with registration no.08.0157.17. The Company is primarily engaged In lending sctivities. The Company
does not sccept deposits from the puhblic. The Company's registerad office is at Aggarwal Corporate Tower, Plot No. 23, 5th Fioor, Govind Lal Sikka Marg,
Rajendra Place, New Delhi- 110008, India.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, thie Board of Directors of the Company approved a Scheme of amalzamation {“the Scheme”] far Amalgamation
inte and with the Holding Company Le. Clix Capital Services Private Limited, All the stakeholders including Reserve Bank of India {RAI) were approached far No
objection for the same. RBI vide its letter dated Cetaber 27, 2022 and January 31, 2023 gave no objection for the Holding Company & the Company, respectively.
The management of both the Companies have re-initisted the proeess of Amalgamation and the Board of Directors had in their respective meetings held on
Ociober 10, 2024 (the Holding company) and Octeber 23, 2024 {the Company) approved the revised Scheme (revised to the extent of thange in Appointed Date
and other factual changes). All the regulators have been accordingly informed. In the meantime the management of the Company, post discussions with
ragulatars and as approved by the Board of Directors, submitted business plan to Mational Housing Bank {NHE] for revival of the business

(i) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The standalane financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time Lo time and natified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and presented in the format
preseribad in the Division Il to Schedule to the Companies Act, 2013 along with other relevant provisions of the Act, the Master Diraction - Non-Banking
Financial Company - Housing Finance Company [Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Nen-Banking Financial
Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023.

Thase financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Bsard of Directors on May 27, 2025. The financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis as the Management is satisfied that the Company shall he abla to continus its husinass for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concem assumption, In making this nent, the I has considered a wide range of infarmation
ralating to present and future conditions, in cluding future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources,

(i} Basis of measurement

The financal statements have been prepared on 2 historical cost basis, except for financial assers and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
(FYTPLY, all of which have been measured at fair value, The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otharwise indicated.

(iii) Pr tation of fi ial st t

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They sre
anly offset and reported net when the Company hias an unconditional legally enforceable right te offset the recognised amaunts without being contingent on a
future event, and the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

A. The narmal course of business

B. The event of default

. The evert of Insolvency ar bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties.

The Company prepares and presents its Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity in the format prescribed by
Division I of Schedule Il to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash
Flows'.

Material accounting policies

The Company sdopted the amendment to the Ind AS-1 'Presentaticn of Financial Statements' as notified by the MCA vide notification dated March 31, 2023
relating to 'Disclosure of Accounting Pelicy Information’ from April 01, 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policies
themselvas, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of 'material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting palicies. The amendments alsa provide guidance on applications of
materiality disclosures of accounting policles, assisting entries te provide useful entry, spedific accounting policy infarmation that user nead to understand other
infermation to this financial statements.

3.1 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the mamagement to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that atfect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, a2t the end of the reporting period. Although
these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actians, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the peried in which changes are made and, if material, their effect are disclosed in the notes fo the financial statements.

3.1.1 Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of printipal and interest and the business mode! test. The
Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how Corpany's financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective.
This t includes judg \t reflacting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and measured including how these
are managed and comp ted to the af the assets. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortisad cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to und erstand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the
objective of tha business for which the asset was held.

Meonitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whethar the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held centinues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has beena change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{&ll amount in INR thousands, except for share dama unless stated otherwise)

3.1.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an assel o paid to transfer = lishility in an ardery transaction in the prindipal {or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditians [Le., an exit price] regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuztion tachnique Whan the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitigs recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valustion technigues that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken
frem chservable markets whers possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values, Judgements and estimates |nclude
consideratians of liquidity and model inputs related to items such 2s credit risk {both own and counterparty], funding value adjustments, correlation and
wolatility.

3.1.3 Effactive Interest Rate (EIR) method

The company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of returi that represents the best estimate of 2 constant rate of return over
the expected behavioural life of loans given [ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of
the product life cycle [including prepayments and penalty interest and chargas).

This estimation, by nature, réguires an element of judgement régarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to
India's base rate and other fae income/expanse that are integral parts of the instrument.
3.1.4 Impairment loss on financial asset

The maasurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessmant of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven
by a numbser of factors, changes in which ean result in different levels of allowanzes.

The company’s ECL caleulations are owlputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the cheice of variable inputs and their
interdependencies. Elemants of the ECL models that are considered accounting j and esti include:

I. The Cornpany’s internal model, which assigns probability of default (PO,
II. fThe Company’s eriteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit rsk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured ona
LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment
. he segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed an a collective hasks
IV Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs
W FDetermination of associations between macroeconemic seenarios and, scanomic inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect
on PDs, Exposure at Default {EAD] 2nd Loss given defaul (LGD)
V1. Salertion of forward-looking macraeconomic scenarias and their probahility weightings, to derive the economicinputs into the ECL medels
It hias bizen the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

3.1.5 Defined employee henefit assets and liabilitias

The cost of the defined benefit gratulty plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation invelves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination
of the discourt rate, future salary increases and mortality rates: Due to the complexities invalved in the valuation and its long-term nzture, a defined henefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

3.1.6 Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the mast appropriate valuation medel, which is dependent on the terms
and conditions of the grant. This astimate also requires determinztion of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation medel including the expected iife of the
share option, volatility and dividand yield and making assumptions about them,

3.1.7 Provisions and ather conti liabilities

The Campany operates in a régulatory and legal envirenment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk inherent to its aperations. As a result, it
s irvolved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the crdinary course of the Company's business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case 2nd considers such outflows 1o he probable, the
Company records a provision against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered te be remate, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made,
a contingent liability is disclosed.

Giverl the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes infe aceount a number of factors including legal
advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
|&ll armount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwisa)

3.1.8 Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to ke a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.
The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines
the lzaze tarm as the non-cancellable pariod of a lease, together with both periads covered by an option to axtend tha lease if the Company is reasonably certain
Lo exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to termirate the lease il the Company is reasonably certain net to exercise that option. In assessing
whether the Company is reasonably cartain to exercise an option te extend a lzase, or not to exercise an opfion to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant
facts and eircumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exércise the aptien te extend the leass, or nat to exercise the option 1o terminate
the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-canceliable pericd of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the izase being evaluated or for & portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balances in bank, and highly liguid investments with maturity period of three months or less
fram the date of invastmeant.

3.2 Revenue recognition
a} Interest and similar incomea

Interest income, for all financial instruments measured either at amertised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, |s
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropiiate, to the gress carrying smount of the financial asset, The calculation takes into account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includas any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable and are
an Integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

b) Foredosure charges and other fees
Foreclosure charges and other fees which include cheque bounce charges, penal fee, legal charges and prepayment charges etc. are recognised as income when
there is certainty regarding the receipt of payment

¢} Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the ecanomic benefits associsted with the
dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measurad reliably. This is generally when sharehalders approve the dividend.

d) Income on derecognized {Assigned) loans

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprises of the difference between inlerest on the [oan portiolio and the applicable rate at which the direct
assignment is entered inte with the assignes, also known 25 the right of excess interest spread (EIS). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash fiow on execution of
the transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss.

e} Other Income
Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognized when the right to receive the income is established as
per the terms of the contract

3.4 Foreign currency

The Company’s financial statemenlts are presented in Indian Rupees [INR) which is also the Company's functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot retes at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. Income and sxpenses in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the axchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and lishilities are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date and
exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

MNon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a fareign currency are transtated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair vaiue is
determined. The gain or (oss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in fine with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differances on items whose fair value gain or loss Is recagnized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI
or profit or loss, respectively).

3.5 Property, plant and equip (PPE) and I ible assets

PPE

PPE are stated at cost (including incidantal expanses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working eondition for its intended use) less accumulated
dapreciation and Impafrment losses, If any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset te its working condition for its
intended use. Subseguent expenditure related to PPE js capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the
Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurrad.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part inftially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future sconomic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset} is included in the statement of profit and loss when the assetis derecopnised.

Intangible fixed assets
The Company's intangible assets mainly include the value of computer software, An intangible asset is recognised only when its epst can be measured reliably
and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measurad on initial recagmition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assats ara carvied at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Nntes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

3.6 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation

[i] Owned assets

{2} Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease term as stated in the [ease agreement ar useful [ife of the assat whichever is lower.

{b) Depreciatioh on owned fixed sssets is provided an straight line methad at the rates, computed based on estimated useful life of those assets as prescribed
under 5chadule Il to the Companies Act, 2013

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

- Computers® = 3 years
- Office equipment - 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures - 10 years

(if) Computer software and Goodwill®

Computer software are amortised using the straight line method over the Management's internal assessment estimate of useful life during which the benefits
are expected to scerue . The useful lives of Computer software are reviewsd at sach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate, The estimated
useful life considered by the Company for Computer Software |s 1 to 10 years, Goodwill is tested for impairment In accordance with Applicable Ind AS at each
Baiance Shzet date.

+The useful lives for Computer Servers differs from the preseribed Schedule 1l rates under Part C of the Companies Act i.e. & years. However, the Company |5
taking 3 years basis the Manags ‘s internal assessment of estimated useful life of these assets.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end 2nd adjusted
praspectively, if appropriate

3.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of 2ssets is reviewed at each balanes sheet darte if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment
loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net
selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model Is used.

after impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over [ts remaining usetul life.

3.8 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Compary has a presert obligation {legal or constructive] as a result of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of
resources ermbodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and = reliahle estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settie the
ohligation at the balance sheet date. f the effact of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost.

3.9 Contingent liabilities and assets

The Company does not recognize a contingant liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

- A present abligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
cbligation

- A present obligation arising from past events, when ne reliakle estimate is possible

- A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of cutflow of resources is remote

Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet dats.

Contingent assets are not recognisad. A contingent assat is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable,
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3.10 Retirement and other employee benefits
The Campany’s obligation towards various employee benefits has been recognised as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable/ availzhle within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employes banefits. Benefits such as salanies,
wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass in the period in which the employee renders the related servica,

Defined contribution plan
Providert fund is a defined contribution plan, The contribution towards provident fund hes been deposited with Regional provident fund commissi and is
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss

Defined benefit plan
The Company pays gratulty to employees who retire or resign after a minimum period of five years of continuous service. The Company has choesen not to fund
the gratuity liabilities of the plan but instead carry a provision based on actuarial valuation in its books of accounts,

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprises of actuarial gains and losses on benefit abligations. The Company recognizes these items of
remeasurements immediately in other comprehensive income and all the other expenses related to defined benefit plans a5 employee beneft expenses in their
profit and [oss account,

\When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when a plan is curtallad o settlement occurs, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, cr the gain or loss on curtallment ar settlement, is recognized imniediately In the profit or loss account when the plan amendment or when 3
curtailment or settlement accurs.

Other long-term benefits — Compensated absences
Entitlernents to annual leave are recognised when they accrue ta employees. Balance leaves, If any can be encashed ar the time of retirement/ termination of
employmant. The Company detzrmines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the year end.

The liahility in respect of 2ll defined benefit pians and other long term benefits is accrued in the hooks of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out
by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligatian is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset cefling, exdluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liabllity and the return on plan assets {excluding amaounts included in net interest on the net defined benefir liability], are recognised i diately in the balance
sheet with 2 correspanding debit or credit to retained sarnings through OC| in the period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified 1o profit or

|oss in subsequent periods.

3.11 Taxes

Tax experse comprises current and defarred tax,

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected 1o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with

Incame tax Act, 1961, Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and other applicable tax laws. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside prafit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss [sither in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Cutrent tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax

Deferrad tax is provided using tha liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reparting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax fosses can be utillsed.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels s reviewsd at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probsble that futurs taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to bhe recoverad,

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, basad
o tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enactad er substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised eutside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other cemprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items ars recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OClor directhy in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liahilitias are offset if a legally enforceable right exists fo set off current fax assets against current tax liabilitiss and the
defarred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3,12 Earning per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as 2 fraction of an equity share ta the extent that they are entitled ta
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the regorting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per sharg, the net profit or loss for the year stiributable to equity sharsholders and the weighted

2 of shares ol Jing during the perind ara adjusted for the effects of all dilitive potential equity shares,
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3.13 Share based payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instrumants at the grant
date,

The fair valiie determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis cver the vesting period, based on
the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will sventually vest, with 2 corvasponding Increase in equity. At the end of sach reporting period, the
Company revises it estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, With a corresponding adjustrent to the Share Based Payments
Reserve:

The dilutive effect of outstanding options Is reflected as additienal share dilution in the computation of diluted sarmings per share.

3.14 Financial instruments

A finandial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of ane entity and afinancial lizhility or equity instrument of another entity.

3.14.1 Financial Assets

3,14.1.1 Initial ition and t

Financial assets, with the exception of [0ans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e,, the date that the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are disbursed to the custamers, The
classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention when acquiring them.
All financial assets are recognised inftially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisitien of the financial asset.

3.14.1.2 ClassHication and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
Debtinstruments at amortised cost
Debt instruments and eguity instruments at fair value through prefit or loss (FVTPLY
Debt instruments at fair valua through other comprehensive income {FVTOCH
Equity instrumeant measured at fair value through other eomprehensive incorme (FYTOCH)

3.14.1.3 Debt instruments at amortised costs
A 'dabt instrument’ i$ measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i, Tha asset is held within a business model whiose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
i, Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount
outstanding.

Business model; The business modsl reflects how the Company manages tha assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, where the Company's objective Is
salely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets, the same Is measured at amertized cost or where the Company's ebjective s ta collect both the
contractual eash flows and cash flaws arising fror the sale of assets, the sameis measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOLIL IF neither
of these s applicable {a.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business mede and measured
at FUTPL.

SPFI: Where the business madel s to hold assets to collect and earn contraciual cash Flows {i.e. measured at amortized cost), the Company assesses whethar the
finaneial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest {the '5PBI test’}. In making this assessment, the Company considers whether
the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement |.e. interest includes unly consideration for the time value of money, cradit risk, other
basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a hasic lending arrangerment. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility
that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset s classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortized
cost, as mantionad above, is computed using the effective interast rate methaod.

After initial measurament, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR) method less impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EiR. The EIR
amortisation is included in interest income In the statement of profit of loss. The losses ariting +rom impairment ars recoghised in the statement of profit 2nd
loss.

3.14.1.4 Debt instruments at FVOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! 1f both of the following criteria are met:

1. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,

ii. The assat's contractual cash flows represent SPRL

Detit instruments included within the FNTOC category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other eomprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign

sxchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or less previously recopnised in OC! is reclassified from the equity to PaL
Interest sarned whilst holding FYTOCH deht instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method,
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3.14.1.5 Debt instrument at FWTPL

FVTPL is 2 residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized
cost ar as FUTOCN, is classified as at FYTPL.

In addition, thé Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI eriteria, a5 at FVTPL However, such
election is allewed only if deing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recegnized in the PEL.

3.14.1.6 Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 108 are measured at fair valus. Eguily instruments which are held for trading classifizd as at PVTPL For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes (n the fair value. The Company
makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

/¥ the company decides to classify 2n equity Wstrument as at FYTOO, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excuding dividends, are
recognized in the OCl There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to PEL, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at far value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

3.14.2 Financial Liabilities
3,14.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liahilities are dassified and measured at amortised cost or FYTPL A financial liability s classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or itis
designated as such on initial recognition. All financial liabilities zre recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and berrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings induding bank pverdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

3.14.2.2 Classification and Subsequent - Fii ial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Finanzial liabilities at fair value through profic or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial lishilities designated upen initial
recognition as at fair value through profit ar loss. Financial liabilities are classified 2s held for trading [T they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relatienships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilitizs held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upen initial recognition at falr value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only 17
the eriterla in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For lizbilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable te changes In own credit risk are recognized
n OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the curnulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and lass.

1.14.2.3 Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-hearing loans and horrowings are subsaquenty measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gans and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised a5 well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amnrtised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisitin and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amoertisation is included as finance costs In the statemant of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

3.14.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The company dossn't reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the ewceptional circumstances in which the
company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities 2re never reclassified.

3.14.4 De recognition of fi ial assets and liabiliti

3.14.4.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a finandal asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the modification of terms and canditions have been renegatiated to the extent
that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already
been recorded. If the modification does nat result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in derecognitian. Based on the
change I cash Mows discounted at the original EIR, the Cowpany recards 8 modification galn or loss, to the extent that an impaimment loss has not already been
racarded
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3.14.4.2 Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

A finandal asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a graup of similar financial zssets)is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset have expired, The Company also derecognisas the financial assat if it has both transferrad the financial zsset and the transfer qualifies for
derecopnition.

The Company has transfarred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

+ The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or

- It retains the rights to the cash flows. but has assumed an obligation ta pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under =
‘pass—through' arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to recelve the cash flows of & financial asset [the 'original
asset’), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities [the ‘eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions
are met:

- Bhe Company has no ehligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short
term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at markat rates.

« The Company cannot sell or pledge the eriginal asset other than as security to the eventual recipients,

+ The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recigients without materia! delay,

In addition, the Company is not entitled 1o refnvest suck cash flaws, except for investments in cash or cash eguivalents including interest sarned, during the
period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventuai raciplents,

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
+ The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
+ [Ehe Company has neither transfarred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,but has transferred control of the assat.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the assst in its entirety to an unrelated third party
and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has nefther transferrad nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be
recognised only to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Campany also recognises an associated liability. The transferred assat
and the assariatad liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing invelvement that takes the

form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the i amount of consi ion
the Company could be required to pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option [or both) on the transferred asset, the continulng invelvernent is measurad at the
value the Company would be required to pay upon repurchase. In the case of 2 written put option on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the
entity's continuing involvement Is lirnited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

3.14.4.2 Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is dischargad, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
ancther from the seme lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification ks
treated as 3 derecognition of the original lizbility and the recognition of a new liability, The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.15 Impsirment of firancial assets

3.15.1 Overview of the ECL principles

The Company is recording the allowance for axpected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan
commitmients and financial guarantee rontracts, (in this section all referred to as ‘financal instruments’). Equity instrumeants are not subject to
impairment under IND A5 109,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since arigination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss {12mECL)).

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from dafault events on a financial Instrument that are pessible within the 12 months
afterthe reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are caleulated on collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s cradit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition this is further explained in Mote 36.2.

Based on the above process, the Company groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stags 3, 25 déscribad below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises 2n allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the eredit
risk has improved and the Ioan has bzen reclassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.

stage 2; When 2 loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the company records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage
2 Inans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the toan has been reclassifisd from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired (as outlined in Note 6), The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs.

For financial assets far which the company has nio reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding smount, or a proportion thereaf,
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is redueed. This is considered a [partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

3.15.2 The caleulation of ECLs

Tha Company calculates ECLs hased on a probability-weighted scenarios and historical dara to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an
approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity In accordance with the contract and the cash Hows
that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are autlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

'PD - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likalihood of default ovar a given time horizon, A default mainly happen at a

certain time over the ascessed period, i the fadlity has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfalio,

-EAD - The Exposure at Default is an exposure at a default date.

-LGD - The Loss Given Default Is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default accurs et a given time. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expact to recsive, including from the realisation of any collateral (tis usually expressed as a
percentage of the EAD,

The maximum period for which the credit lesses are determinad is the enpected life of @ financial instrumenit.
The mechanics of the ECL mathod are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on 3 financial instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date, The Company calculates the the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of 2 default occurring in the 12
months following the reporting date, These expectad 12-month default prebabilities are applied to 2 EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since arigination, the Company records an allowance far the LTECLs. The machanies
are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the Instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired (as defined in Mote 63| , the Company recogrizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these Inans. The
methed is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn [oan commitments, the Company estimates the expected portion of the lnan commitment that will be
drawn down gver its expacted [ife. The ECL is then based on the present value of the expectad shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down.

For loan commitments, the ECL is recognised within Provisions.

3.15.3 Forward looking information

While estimating the expected cradit losses, the Company reviews matro-econamic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates In. On a
periodic basis, the Company analyses if thers is any relationship between key ecenamic trends like GOP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the
Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD
rates by the Company may not be always reflactive of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded In the methodology to raflact such macro-
eeonomic trands reasonably,

3.15.4 Assels held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale i their carrying amount is intended to be recovered pringipally thraugh a sale |rather than through continuing
use) when the asset is available for immediate sals in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such asset and the sale
s highly prabable and is expected to qualify for recagnition as a completed sale within ane year from the date of classification, They are measured at lawer of
their carrying amount and fair vaiue less costs to sell.

MNan -current assets are not depreciated while they are classified as held for sale and are presented separataly fram other assets in the balance sheat,
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3.15.5 Write-offs

Financizl assets are written off either partizlly or in their entirety basis the DED threshold (technizal write off / different DPD threshold for different
product basis recovery trend) approved by board OR when asset is desmed irrscoverable / Recovery is expected to flow over time though not in the immediate
future /It is more economical to sell the asset to third party / Obligor is deceased and recovery is unlikely. Financial assets that are written off could stiil be
subject to enforcement activities under the Company's recovery pracedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriats. Any subsequent recoveries are
eradited to profit and loss account,

3.16 Fairvalue measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation techniques.

Fair valug is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurément date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lizbility takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liabllity, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or llabiity

The principal er the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Cornpany.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markst participants would use when pricing the asset or llability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

Afair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic henafits by using the asset in its highest
anel best use or by selling it to another market participant thar would use the assat in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are eppropriate In the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the uss of unshservable inputs,

All essets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
fellows, based'an the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valus measurement as a whals:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is diractly or indirectly abservable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lawest leve| input that is significant to the fair value measursment is unobservahle
For assets and liabilities that are recognisad in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whather transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reparting period.

3.17 Dividend

The Company recognises a [iability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is ne longer at the
discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded
as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directots.

3.18 Expenditura

Expenses are recognised on accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities. The Company has alse entered into certain cost sharing
arrangements for resources shared with other entities, The costs allocated to the Company under the cost sharing arrangements are included in the respective
expenses. The costs allocated to other entitizs under the cost sharing arrangement are shown a5 amounts recoverable from the respective parties,

3.19 Statement of cash flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activitias. Cash flow from aperating activities is reported
using indirect method adjusting the net profit far the effects of :

i) changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;

i} nen-cash ftems such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealized foreign currency gains and losses: and

iii) Al other items for which the cash effects are Investing or financing cash flows,

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank batances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for general use as on the date
of Balance Sheet

4. Recent Indian Acc ing St ds / P

4.1 New and A led Standards adopted by the

The Company has applied the following amendments for the first time for thelr annual reporting period commencing April 1, 2024:

MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 118 - Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the
Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any
significant irmpact in its financial statemants.

4.2 New Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective: -

MCA has riot natifled any new standards or amendments, which are nat yet effective, to the existing standards applicable ta the Company
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As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 5A: Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks in current accounts 7,430 9,179
In Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 5
7,430 9,179
Note 5B: Bank balance other than above
Earmarked Balances with Bank * 18,234 17,280
18,234 17,280
Total 25,664 26,459

* Earmarked balances with bank held as Margin money are under lien. The Company has the complete beneficial
interest on the income earned from these deposits which includes Rs. 16,592 held towards "Borrowing against

Securitised FPortfolio" .

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Balances in Current account with:
- Scheduled banks
-Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months

7,430

9,179

7,430

9,179
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As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 6: Loans
In india
At Amortised Cost
Term loans 661,892 640,131
Total (A) Gross 661,892 640,131
Less: Impairment loss allowance (27,246) (24,388)
Total (A) Net 634,646 615,743
Out of above
Secured by tangible assets (property including land and
builiding) 661,892 640,131
Unsecured - -
Total (B) Gross 661,892 640,131
Less: Impairment loss allowance (27,246} (24,388)
Tatal (B) Net 634,646 615,743
Out of above
Loans in India
Public Sector - =
Others 661,892 640,131
Total (C) Gross 661,892 640,131
Less: Impairment loss allowance (27,246) (24,388)
Total (C) Net 634,646 615,743

Note : No Loans or Advances are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayments (31 March 2024 INR
Nil).

Securitisation;

The Company uses securitisations as a source of finance. Such transactions generally result in the
transfer of contractual cash flows from portfolios of financial assets to holders of issued debt
securities. Securitisation has resulted in the continued recognition of the securitised assets.

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that
are not derecognised in their entirety and associated liabilities.

As at As at
Loans and advances measured at amortised cost 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at
166,034 207,353

amortised cost
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 122,783 175,971
The carrying amount of above assets and liabilities is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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Clix Housing Finanee Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
[All amaunt in INR thausands, except for share data unless stated etherwise]

Note 6.2 Loan Commitrment

6.2.1 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the con ponding ECL all s in relation to loan i tis, as foll

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Particulars Stage 1l Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stagel Stage 2 Stage 2 Tatal
Gruss carrying amount opening balance = - = = = = 5 =
Naw loan commitmient given - = 2 2l o . =

Assets disbursed/cancelled = i = z 5 3 i -
Gross carrying amount closing balance - E - " > = i

5.2.2 Reconciliation of ECL bal is given below:

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance & = . - = = 1 =
Mew loan commitment given - - . £ = = 3 &
Assots dishursedfeancelled < - 3 i = = " =
ECL allowance - closing balance = - - - = z = 5

Modified Finandal Assets

The Company renegotiates laans given to custamers in finandal difficulties {referred 1o as farbearance actlvities, restructuring or rescheduling) to improve the potential of repayment by the
barrawer maximize collection opportunities and to minimise the risk of default. Under the Companies forbearance pelicy, Ioan forbearznce is granted on a selective basis if the customer i
currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there is suidénce that the customer mad all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the customer
is expected to be able fo meet the revised terms. The revised terms usually include extending the marurity, changing the timing of interest payments and amending the terms of loan
covenants. The Senigr team Risk M Cammittes larly reviews reports on farbearance activities and performance: Upon renegotiation; such accounts are dewngraded basis

and are suk ly upgraded to Stage 1 only upon observation of satisfactory repayments of one year from the date of sich down-gradation and accordingly loss
allowanice s measured using 12 month probability of default (PO}




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 6.3 Impairment assessment

The references below show where the Company's impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out
in these notes. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting policies.

- Definition of default

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL
caleulations typically when the borrower becomes S0 days past due on contractual payments. The Company may
also classify a loan in Stage 3 if there is significant deterioration in the loan collateral, deterioration in the
financial condition of the borrower or an assessment that adverse market conditions may have a
disproportionately detrimental effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the gualitative assessment of
whether an instrument is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in
or non repayment of the loan. When such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event
should result in treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or
whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Classification of accounts into stage 2 is done on a conservative basis and typically accounts where contractual
repayments are more than 30 days past due are classified in stage 2.

It is the Company’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3
when none of the default criteria are present. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 ance
cured depends on the updated credit grade once the account is cured, and whether this indicates there has been
a significant reduction in credit risk.

- Probabhility of default

The credit rating provided by the external rating agencies/account level delinquency/ internal matrix has been
considered while assigning Probability of Default (PD) at a portfolio level. The PDs are computed for homogenous
portfolio segments.

- Exposure at default
The outstanding balance as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the Company. Considering that PD
determined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.

- Loss given default (LGD)

The Company uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for identified homogenous poals for the purpose of
calculating LGD. The estimated recovery cash flows are discounted such that the LGD calculation factors in the
NPV of the recoveries.

- Significant increase in credit risk

The Company evaluates the loans on an ongoing basis. The Company also assesses if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since the previously risk taking Into consideration both qualitative and quantitative
information . One key factor that indicates significant increase in credit risk is when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due or where existing terms are renegotiated.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

One time restructuring (OTR) of loan accounts was permitted by RBI vide circulars dated 6 August 2020
‘resolution framework for COVID-19 related stress’ and 'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector —
Restructuring of Advances' and circulars dated 5 May 2021 'Resolution Framework — 2.0: Resolution of Covid-19
related stress of Individuals and Small Businesses' and 'Resolution Framework 2.0 — Resolution of Covid-19
related stress of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs)'. The Company has considered OTR as an
indicator of significant increase in credit risk and accordingly classified such loans as stage 2. Further, the
Company on demonstration of regular payment for certain accounts post renegotiation which are subject to no
overdue / satisfactory performance during the specified period as per the respective circular guidelines regarding
the reversal of pravisioning and relevant staging if no other indicators of significant increase in credit risk on such
loans.

- Grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis

The Company calculates ECLs on collective basis on following asset class:-
- Housing portfolio
- Loan against property (LAP) portfolio

Note 6.4 Collateral

The Company holds collateral to mitigate credit risk associated with financial assets.The main types of collateral
and the types of assets, these are associated with are listed in the table below. The collateral presented relates
to instruments that are measured at amortised cost.

" As at As at
Nl 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Residential & Non-Residential Properties 661,892 640,131
Total 661,892 640,131

The Company periodically monitors the market value of collateral and evaluates its exposure and loan to value
metrics for high risk customers. The Company exercises its right of repossession across all secured products. It
also resorts to invoking its right under the SARFAESI Act and other judicial remedies available against its
maortgages.

The Company did not hold any financial instrument for which no loss allowance is recognised because of
collateral at March 31, 2025. There was no change in the Company’s collateral policy or collateral quality during
the period.

Refer Note 35.2.2 for risk concentration based on loan to value (LTV)




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 6.5 Transfer of financial assets that are derecognised in their entirely

As a short-term financing approach, the Company has been transferring or selling certain pools of loan
receivables by entering in to direct assignmant transactions with Investors for consideration received in cash at
the inception of the transaction. With an objective of better liquidity and risk management, the Company, during
the course of the year, obtains approval of the Investment Committee and Board of Directors through circulating
board resolution for undertaking direct assignment transactions of certain value of loan assets comprising the
collateral based loan receivables at appropriate times during the year. These transactions are carried out after
complying with extant RBI guidelines. Besides direct assignment as alternate financing tool, it is also being used as
a effective Balance sheet management through better liquidity and risk management by transfer of assets from
risk averse to risk takers. Such sale/transfer does not change the Company's business objective of holding
financial assets to collect contractual cash flows. The Company derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

The carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets not in default category measured at amortised cost as
on date of transfer during the year is Nil (Assigned - Nil) (Previous year: 62,067 {Assigned - Rs. 68,963)) and
consideration received for such transfer is Nil (Previous year: 62,067) respectively.

Note 6.6 Risk assessment model

The Company has designed and operates its risk assessment model that factors in both quantitative as well as
qualitative information on the loans and the borrowers. Depending upon the nature of products, the model uses
historical empirical data to arrive at factors that are indicative of future credit risk and segments the portfolio on
the basis of combinations of these parameters into smaller homogenous portfolios from the perspective of credit
behavior.
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(#il amaunt in INR thousands, except for share data uniess s:ated otherwise]

Asat
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Note 9; Other financial assets

EIS Receivabla 77,669 105,348
Lass: Impairment loss allowance {1,041} (1,591}
Security deposit 131 131
Other financial assets 1,123 1,407
Intareaminany receivable 4,220 =
Total 82,102 105,295
As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 10: Other non financial assets
Prepaid expenses 103 131
Advance to suppliers 515 299
Balanes with statutory/zovernment authorfties
= G5T input credit 14,248 13.702
Total 14,866 14,132
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Mote 11: Payables
Trade Payables
Total outsanding dues of Micre Enterprises and Srrall Enterprisesk 293 1341
Total outsanding dues of Crediters other than Micro Enterprises and Small 3,655 5,141
Enterprises
QOther Payables
Total outsanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Entarprisest - -
Tetal sutsanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and 29,143 16,945
Small Enterprises
33,001 23,427

The following ageing schedule is given for trade payables due for payment

As at 31 March 2025

Unhilled / Mot due Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years Z-3years |More than
3 years
Trade Payables
(IIMSME 291 Z - = 293
(ii}COthers 3,564 27 5] 4 3,655
(ili) Disputed dues — MSME - = 2 = = :
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - -
Total 3,855 8% - o 4 3,947
As at 31 March 2024
Unhilled [ Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-Z years 2-3years  [More than
3 years
Trade Payables
{i)M5ME 1,341 - - 1,341
{I)Others 4,987 62 0 48 44 5,141
{iii) Disputed dues — MSME i = i = =
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 6,327 62 0 48 44 6,482

#Based on and to the extent of the Information received by the Company from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micra

(MSMED Act), the relevant particulars as at the year-end are furnished below:

Principal amount due ta suppliers under MSIMED Act, as at the year end.
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the ahove
ameunt as at the year end

Payment made to suppliers [other than interest) beyond the appointed
day, during the vear

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act [other than Section 16)
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act [Section 16)

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments
already made

Interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the year end to suppliers
under MSMED Act

Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
293 1,241

, Small and Medium Enterprises Cevelopment Act, 2006
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Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 13: Other financial liabilities
Employee benefit payables 1,286 1,441
Inter company payables - 3,212
Advances received from customer 6,501 17,474
Total 7,787 22,127
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 14: Provisions
Pravision for employee benefits
- Leave encashment (refer note 30) 282 378
- Gratuity payable (refer note 30) 879 504
Other provisions 237 237
Total 1,398 1,119
As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Note 15: Other non-financial liabilities

Statutory dues payable
Total

362

797

362

797




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Note 16: Equity Share Capital

Authorised :
552,000 552,000
55,200,000 (31 March 2024: 55,200,000) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each
552,000 552,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
552,000 552,000
55,200,000 (31 March 2024: 55,200,000) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each
Total 552,000 552,000
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Clix Housing Finarice Limited
Notes to Finanrial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All arnount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

Name of the sharehalder As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

MNo. of shares INR In 000's No. of shares INR In 000's
Equity Share at the beginning of year 55,200,000 552,000 55,000,000 550,000
Add: Shares issued during the year - - 200,000 2,000
Equity share at the end of year 55,200,000 552,000 55,200,000 552,000

During the previous year the Company had issued 2,00,000 Equity shares (Face Value INR 10 per share) at INR 10 per share to Holding company for consideration of INR
2000,

Shares held by helding Company [ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
Holding Company
Clix Capital Services Private Limited 55,195,994 100.00% 55,199,984 100.00%
Total 55,199,994 100.00% 55,199,994 100.00%

As per recerds of the Company, the above sharehalding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Shares held by promoters

Name of the sharehalder Asat 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

MNo. of shares % of holding Mo. of shares % of holding
Holding Company
Clix Capital Services Private Limited 55,199,994 100.00% 55,199,934 100.00%

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the C

Name of the shareholder frsat azat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
Clix Capital Services Private Limited 55,195,994 100.00% 55,199,994 100.00%
Total 55,199,994 100.00% 55,199,594 100.00%

As per records of the Company, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Clirs Capital Services Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Plutus Financials Put Ltd. (Mauritius)
Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has anly ene class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each share of the Company carries 1 vote except in case of poll where voting
Fight is in proportion of the share of paid-up capital of the Company held by the shareholder. Each shareholder is entitled to receive dividend when it is declared by the
Board of Directors. The final dividends pruposed by the Board of Directors are paid when approved by the sharsholders at arnual general meeting.

In the event of iquidation, the Shareholders of the Company are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company atter discharging all liabilities of the Company
in proportion to their shareholdings.

Aggregate humber of bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

As at As at As at Asat Asat

March 312025 March 312024 March 312023  March 31 2022 March 31 2021
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by = = “
capitalization of securities premium
Equity shares allotted as fully paid benus shares by - - - o =
capitalisation of general reserve
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares hy - - = > =
capitalisation of Credit balance in Statement of Profit and
Loss
Total = € fi s o

Particular

Aggregate number of bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

As at As at As at As at As at
March 312025 March 312024 March 312023 March 31 2022 March 31 2021
Equity shares bought back by capitalisation of Statement of - - = C =
Profit and Loss and transferred to capital redemption reserve
(INR 10 face value of each share )
Total = = - - - -

Particular
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 17: Other Equity
Share based payment reserve
Opening balance 2,241 1,492
Compensation options granted during the year 1,796 1,250
Reversal towards Cash Settlement during the year = (501)
Closing balance 4,037 2,241
Statutory reserve u/fs 29C of The National Housing Bank
Act, 1987
Opening balance 22,342 17,825
Addition during the year 1,711 4,517
Closing balance 24,053 22,342
Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) -
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability
Opening balance 2,387 2,476
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (281) (89)
Transfer from / (to) Retained earnings (2,106) -
Closing balance - 2,387
Retained earnings
Opening balance 19,308 1,143
Profit for the year 8,466 22,676
Transfer to statutory reserve (1,711) {4,517)
Transfer from / (to) other comprehensive income 2,106 -
Closing balance 28,169 19,308
Total of Retained Earnings and Other Comprehensive
Income 28,169 21,695
Total 56,259 46,278

Share based payment reserve: The holding Company provides share based payment schemes to the
employees of the Company.Share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity settled
share based payments provided to employees as a part of their remuneration.

Statutory reserve u/s 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987: Section 29C (i) of The Mational Housing
Bank Act, 1987 defines that every housing finance institution which is a company shall create a reserve fund
and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
statement of profit and loss before any dividend is declared. Accordingly, during the year ended 31 March
2025, The Company has transferred an amount of INR 1,711 (31 March 2024: INR 4,517) to the Reserve in
terms of Section 29C of the National Housing Bank (“NHB") Act, 1987,

Retained earnings: These represent the surplus in the profit and loss accaunt and is free for distribution of




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 18: Interest Income
On financial assets measured at Amortised cost
Interest income on
- Loans 47,494 §7,880
- Inter-corporate Loan - 4,808
- on fixed deposits 1,079 961
Total 48,573 103,649
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 19: Fees and commission income
Other charges 1,377 7,068
Total 1,377 7,068
Note 19.1: Revenue from contracts with customers
PartiEGlars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Type of services or service
Other Charges 1,377 7,068
Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1,377 7,068
Geographical markets
India 1,377 7,068
Outside India - -
Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1,377 7,068
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time 1377 7,068
Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1,377 7,068

Information about Company’s performance obligations

The Performanace obligation in regards of arrangements where the above fees is charged per transaction executed

is recognised at point In time when transaction is executed.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 20: Net gain/ {loss) on fair value changes

(A} Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss
(i} On trading portfolio
- Investments 4,012 3,450
Total Net gain on financial instruments 4,012 3,450
(B)Fair Value changes:
-Realised 3,142 2,653
-Unrealised -MTM gain/{loss} 870 797
Total Net gain on fair value changes(A) to tally with (B) 4,012 3,450

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 21: Other income

Interest income
- on income tax refund 414 b
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back 2,124 "
Miscellaneous Income 802 575
Total 3,340 791




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
[All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 22: Finance Costs
At amortised cost
Interest on borrowings (including debt securities)
- Mon convertible debentures - 18,515
- Borrowing against Securitised Portfolio 16,517 28,497
- Inter-corporate loans 6 5,940
Total 16,523 52,952
Year ended Year ended
321 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 23: Fees and commission expense
Fees and commission expense 453 1,633
453 1,632
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 24: Impairment on financial instruments
At amortised cost
ECL on loan assets 2,858 {77,433)
ECL on loan assets adjusted against interest income on Stage 3 loans* (1,64B) (1,478)
Bad debt written off / recovered 5,790 (1,790)
ECL on other financial assets (5,117) (775)
Write off of other financial assets 3,429 93,843
Total 5,314 12,367

* relating to interest on credit impaired assets, which is netted off from interest income in accordance with Ind AS 109 on Financial
Instruments.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 25: Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries and wages 8,524 8,591
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 30) 573 660
Share Based Payments to employees (refer note 37) 1,796 1,250
Staff welfare expenses 34 343
Total 10,927 10,844
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 26; Other expenses
Rent 414 387
Printing & stationary - 2
Rates and taxes 930 20
Travelling and conveyance 616 302
Legal and professional fees * 7,469 15,661
Outsourced service costs 347 208
Advertisement and sales promotion 7 52
Miscellaneous 1,092 3
Total 10,885 16,636

* Legal and professional charges includes auditors remuneration {excluding goods and service tax) comprises the following:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

As auditors:
Audit fee

-Statutory audit 256 335

-Limited review - 125
In other capacity:
Other services including certification 294 40
Reimbursement of expenses 48 11

Total 598 511
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amount in INR thousands, excapt for share data unlsss stated otherwisa|

Mote 27; Income Tax

Current tax

{i) The compenents of income tax axpense for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are:

Profit or foss section Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current income tax:
Current income tax chergs - =

Adjustments in raspect of current income tax of previsus year - {128]
Deferred tax:
ARelating ta arigination and reversal of temporary differences 3,632 6,765
Adjustments in respactof Deferred tax recognised for previcus year (378} (118)
Income tax expense repoarted in the statement of prafit or loss 3,255 6,519
Current tax - =
Current tax for earlier years - [128)
Deferrad tax 3,155 65,647
{li} Other comprehensive income section Year ended Yaar ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current income tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 25 (30}
Income tax expense reported in the other comprehensive section 95 {30}
Income tax exp 3l i in the st. of profit and loss 3,349 6,485

(iii] Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 31 March 2025 £ 31

March 2024
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Prafit before tax 11,720 28,195
Indian statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax 2t applicable statutory income tax rate (A) 2,950 7,348
Adjustment in respect ef Current tax of previous year (3) - (128)
Non-deductible expenses (C) 6B3 321
Impact due to non recognistion of OTA on timing items (D) {378) [1,022)
Income tax expense reported in the profit or loss section {A+B+C+D) 3,255 6,519
Other Comprehensive Income (378) [119)
Tax at statutory Income tax rate (E ) 35 [30)
Impzct due to non recognition of DTA on timing diffarence (F) - -
Tax impact reported on Other Comprehensive Income (E+F) 95 (30}

Deforred Tax.

Deferred Tax
The followirg table shows deferred tax recordad in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expenss for the year ended 31 March 2025:

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax Net deferred tax  Income statement oct
liability asset [ (liabilities)
As at Asat As at Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2025
Other Intangible Assets - (1,791} {1,791} 105 =
ECL an Loan and advances/ Investment/ Loan commitment 7119 - 7119 2,135 %
Provision for expensa / 43B Disallowance 278 - 878 (545) -
Unabsorbed loss 6,245 - 6,245 {7,239) -
Others - (337) (337) (4 -
Unamortised cost {net of unamortised fees} - (5.648) (5,648} 2457
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability - - - (95) 95
14,242 (2,775) 6,467 13,254) 95
The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and ch recorded in the Incomie tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2024:
Deferred tax assets Deferred tax Met deferred tax.  Income statement oct
liability asset / (liabilities)
As at As at As at Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
Grher Intangible Assets - {1,896) (1,895) (72) -
ECL on Loan and advances/ Investment/ Loan commitment 4,984 - 4,984 (20,008) -
Provision far expense [ 438 Disallowance 1,423 - 1,433 194 -
Unahsorbed loss 13,484 - 13,484 13,484 -
Others - (263) (263) (200) =
Unamertised cost (net of unamortised fees) - (8,105) (8,105) {14) -
Remeasurement of definad benafit lizbility - - - {30} 30
19,391 [10,264) 9,627 (6,647) 30




Note 28: Earning per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is caleulated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted averags number of equity shares outstanding
during the year,

Piluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the waighted aversge number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of equity shares that would be issued en the conversion of all the dllutive potantial ordiniary shares nta ordinary shares.

Period ended Period ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Following reflects the prefit and share data used in EPS computations:
Basic
Weighted average number of equity sharas for computation of Basic £55 {INR
in 000's) 53,200 55,133
Net prafit for caleulation of basic EPS (INR In 0oo's) 8,466 22,678
Basic zarning per share 0.15 041
Diluted
Weighted average number of equity shares for com putation of Diluted EPS
(INR In 000's) 55,200 55,133
Met profit for calculation of Diluted EPS (INR In 000') 8456 22.676
Diluted saming per share 0.15 0.41
Nominal value of equity shares {In INR) 10.00 10.00

Reconciliation of weighted average number of aquity shares for the vear ended 31 March 2025 for basic and diluted earnings

pershara:
Particulars Weighted average no. of shares

Basic Diluted
Equity shores of face value of INR 10 per share
Opening 55,200 55,200
Additions % =
Closing 55,200 55,200

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for the vear ended 31 March 2024 for basic and diluted &arnings per shara

Particulars Weighted average no. of shares

Basic Dilyted
Equity shares of face value of (INA 10 per share
Onening 55,000 55,000
Additions 133 133
Closing 55,133 55,133

Note 29: Segment information

The Company’s primary business sagment is raflected based on the principal business carried out, 2. Housing Finance. Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting s required to ba
made in the financial of the Company. The Company principally within India and duss not have operations in economic envirenments with differant risks and raturns; hence,
Itis considered operating in single geographical segment,




Note 28: Earning per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit far the year attributable to equity halders of the Company by the weighted sverzge number of equity shares outstanding
during the year,

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit altributsble 1o equity halders of Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential orclinary shares into ordinary shares.

Perlad ended Period ended

March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fellowing reflects the profit and share data used in EPS computations:
Basic
Weighted average rumber of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS (INR
in 000's) 85,200 35,133
Netprofit for calculation of basic EPS [INR In 000%) 8,466 23,675
Basic earning per share 0.15 0.41
Diluted
Welghted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS
(INR In 000's) 55,200 55,133
Met pretit for calculation of Diluted EPS (INR In £00's) 8,465 22,676
Diluted earning per share 0.15 0.41
Nominal value of equity shares (In INR) 10.00 10.00

Recondiliation of waighted average number of 2quity shares far the year endsd 31 March 2025 far basic and diluted
earnings per share:

Particulars Weighted average no. of shares

Basic Diluted
Equity shares of face volue of INR 10 per share
Opening 55,200 55,200
Additions - -
Clasing 55,200 55,200

Reconciliation of welghted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2024 for basic and diluted earnings per share:

Particulars Weighted average ne. of shares

Basic Diluted
Equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share
Opening 55,000 55,000
Additions 133 133
Closing X 55,133 55,133

Note 28; Segmant information

The Company’s primary business segment is reflected based on the principal business carried out, f.e. Housing Finance. Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting is required to
be made in the financial statements of the Company. The Company cperates principally within India and does not have operations in econamic environments with differant risks and returns:
hence, itis considered operating in single Eeographical segment.
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 31: Contingent liabilities, commitments
A) Contingent liabilities

The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company by the customers and pertaining to
proceedings pending with Income Tax, Excise, Custom, Sales/ VAT tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed
all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed
as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these
proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial results.

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts amounts to INR 18700 (previous year INR Nil). These relate to
lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings, which arise in the ordinary course of business and includes amounts
litigated against the Company net of amount provided for contingencies. While the ultimate liability cannot be
ascertained at this time, based on facts currently available and its current knowladge of the applicable law, management
believes that the cases will not have a material adverse affect on the Company’s financial statements or its business
operations.

B) Commitment

The Company has given corporate guarantees for Securitisation transactions. The total of such Euarantees as on 31
March 2025 amounts to Rs. 14,500 (31 March 2024: Rs. 14,500).
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Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amount in INR thousands, excepl for share data unless stated atherwise)
Note 32: Related Party Disclosures

As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are gluen below.

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationshipe:

Particulars Relationship

Clix Capital Services Private Limited Halding Company
Clix Anaiyzics Private Uimited (liquidated w.e £, 03rd January 2024) Fellow Subsidiary
Clix Loans Private Limited (Liquidated w.a.f, 20th November 2022} Fellow Subsidiary
Tezzract Fintech Private Limited {w.e.f. 2nd November 2043) Fellow Subsidiary
Tezz Capital Fintech Private Limited (w.e.f 2nd Novermber, 2023) Fellow Subsidiary

Key Managerial personnel

Kaushik Ramkrishnan (Till 19¢h March, 2025)
Vikram Rathi (Till 06th September, 2024)
Aparna Bihany (Till Cath April, 2024)

Gagan Aggarwal (From 27th May, 2024)
Rakesh Kaul {From Dath April, 2024)

Aditya Gupta (From 07th March, 2025)

Armit Kumar Jain

Vinu R Kalra (from 17 August 2023)

Neon Executive Directar
Men Executive Directar
Whale-time Director
‘Whale-time Director

Non Executive Director
Non Executive Directar
Chief Financial Officar (CFO}
Campany Secretary

b The nature and volume of transactions carried out with the above related parties in the ordinary course of businass are as Tollows ;

{e]

1. R ation to Key M. 2rial personnel
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Shert Term Employes Benefits 6,683 6,940
Share based Paymenitsf 1,796 1,250
8,479 8,130

The remuneration given to key managerizl personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefit, as they are determined on actuarial basis for the Company asa

whale.
# Represent ESOP reserve created towards aptions granted to KMP's
Ne remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during the year. (2024: Nil)

2. Other Transactions

|Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2025

Year ended 31 March 2024

Amount received A paid

Amount paid

Interest on Inter Corporate Loans
Clix Capital Services Private Limited -~ 6

Proceeds from Transfer of Financial assets (assignment)
Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Amaount received on behalf of the related party
Clix Capital Services Private Limited - =

Payment made on Direct Assignment pool where Clix Housing |5 Assignee and collecting money
Clix Capiral Services Private Limited - 108,807
Amount paid by the company on behalf of the Related Party
Clix Capital Service Private Limited - 7,258
Praceeds from Investment received in equity shares
Clix Capital Services Privated Limited - -

E share based pay schemes of Holding Company

Clix Capital Services Private Limited - 1,796

Inter Carporate loans taken

Clix Caprtal Service Private Limited 23,000

Inter Corporate loans given
Clix Caplital Service Private Limited = G

4,808

62,067

400

2,000

200,000

90,000

5,840

215,219

3,337

749

200,000

Balance gutstanding at the year end

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Amaounts Payable

Inter Corporate loans

Clix Caplital Services Private Limited
Inter company payables

Clix Capital Services Private Limited =

23,006

3.212

23,006 3,212

Amounts Receivable
Inter company recejvables

Clix Capital Services Private Limitad 4,220

4,220 -




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 33: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is safety and security of
share capital and maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The
company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which s total debt divided by net worth.

Debt to net worth ratio
(INR in thousands)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Debts 145,789 175,971
Net worth 608,259 598,278
Debt ta Net woth (times) 0.24 0.29

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the
financial covenants would permit the lender ta immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial
cavenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

34 Fair value measurement

34.1 Valuation principles
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in tha principal
{or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of
whether that price is directly/ indirectly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniques.

34.2 Valuation governance
The Company's fair value methadology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to
ensure appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuation
methodologies) are subject to approvals by Asset Liability Committee {ALCO) which shall be reported to the Board of Direclor. The
responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with business units . Once submitted, fair value estimates are also reviewed and
challenged by the Risk and Finance functions.

34.3 Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy
The company's investment in Mutual Fund is the only financial asset measured at fair value through Profit & Loss. The fair value of
units held in mutual funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV) taking into account redemption and/or any
other restrictions. Such instruments are classified under Level 1. Fair value of such investments held at 31 March 25 is INR 12,542
{31 March 2024: INR 11,672 ).

34.4 Valuation techniques

Mutual funds

Units held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemptian and/or other
restrictions.

34.5 Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Loans - Most of the loans are repriced frequently, with interest rate of loans reflecting current market pricing. Hence carrying value
of loans is deemed to be equivalent of fair value,

Borrowings and debt securities -
- Fair value of fixed rate borrowings is detemined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using current market

interest rate charged for similar new borrowing and carrying value of such borrowing approximates fair value at financial statement
level.

Other Financial Assets and Liabilities - The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade
payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

Investment in Pass through certificates - These instrument include asset backed securitias, The market for these securities is not
active and considering the cash flow of the instrument associated with securitized liabilities management approximate the carrying
amaount its fair value.
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Risk Management

Introduction and risk profile

Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company's activities, it is managed through an integrated risk management
framewaork, including ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk
exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Campany is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and interest rate risk. It is
also subject to various operating and business risks.

Risk management struture and policies

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and
principles. The Risk Management Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and implementing
principles, frameworks, policies and limits. The Risk Management Cammittee is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring
risk levels and reports to the Board.

The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an independent contral
process is maintained, The unit works closely with and reports to the Risk Management Committee, to ensure that procedures are
compliant with the overall framework.

The Unit is also responsible for monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies and limits across the Company. Each business group
has its own unit which is responsible for the control of risks, including monitoring the actual risk of exposures against authorised limits and
the assessment of risks of new products and structured transactions. The Company's Treasury is responsible for managing its assets and
liabilities and the overall financial structure. It is also primarily responsible for the funding and liguidity risks of the Company.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual
obligations. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual
counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposuras in relation to such limits. Credit risk is
monitered by the credit risk department of the Company’s independent Risk mangament Unit. It is their responsibility to review and
manage credit risk. The Company assesses the credit quality of all financial instruments that are subject to credit risk.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk was INR 750,350
and INR 752,332 as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of loan balances, investment
in PTC and other financial assets.
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Analysis of risk concentration

The Company's concentrations of risk are managed based en Loan to value (LTV) segregation as wall as the purpose of loan i.e. where it is a loan for hause
purchase or loan again progerty for business purpsses. The following tables stratify credit exposures from loans to customers by ranges of [oan-to-value (LTV)
ratio and on product basis. LTV 15 calculated as the ratlo of gross amount of the |oan - or the amount commitied for loan commitments - to the value of tha

collateral. The value of the coliateral for loans is based on collateral value st erigination.

31 March 2025
Loans to customers:

LTV wise bifurcation:

LTV bucket Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
036-80% 210,508 19,461 7,760 237,718
More than 40%- upto A05% 143 878 3412 2,582 155,879
IMore than 60%- upto 8054 153,859 26,400 38,879 219,138
More than 80% 5,054 17,412 22,681 45,146
Total 523,289 66,684 71,908 661,892
Customer profile

Custamer profile Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
Housing loan 404,176 54,678 46,215 505,070
Loan against property 119,123 12,006 25,693 156,822
Total 523,299 65,684 71,908 661,892
Loan Commitments:

LTV wise bifurcation:

LTV bucket Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
0%-40% - - - -
More than 40%- upto 60% - = -

Muore than 60%- upto 80% = - =
Mare than B0% = = =
Total = - - 7
Customer profile;

(Customer profile Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 A

Housing loan - = =
Loan against property - = = x
Total x - = -
31 March 2024

Loans to customers:

LTV wise bifurcation:

LTV bucket Stage 1* Stage 2 Stage 3 Amaunt
096-30% 77,526 15,193 4,338 57,064
More than 40%- upto 60% 105,962 12,275 12,544 130,785
More than 60%- upto 80% 254,275 53,703 47,357 355,335
More than 20% 43,938 10,818 19T 56,947
Tatal 481,700 91,939 66,432 A40,131
Customer profile

Customer profile Stage 1* Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
Housing loan 355,426 72,252 34,422 462,099
Loan against property 126,275 19,747 32,010 178,032
Total 481,700 91,999 66,432 540,131
*Excluding Intercorporate Loan INR 90,000

Loan Commitments;

LTV wise bifurcation:

LTV bucket Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 A

0%6-40% - - - £
More than 40%- upto 50% = < = E
Mare than 60%- upto 0% - - = -
Mere than 20% ~ - o
Total - - -] &
Customer profile:

Customer profile Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount

Heousing loan

Loan against property

Total
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk refers to the risk that the Company can not meet its financial obligations. The ohjective of Liquidity risk management is to
rmaintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirement. The unavailability of adegquate ameunt of
funds to repay the financial liabilities and further growth of business may lead to an Asset Liability Management (ALM) mismatch caused
by a difference in the maturity profile of Company assets and liabilities. It may be related to funding = impossibility to obtain new
funding - and to markets — inability to sell or convert liquid assets into cash without significant losses. Therefore, the Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and undrawn credit facilities, by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash
flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Liquidity risk is managed by ALCO through its periodic reviews relating to the liquidity position and stress tests under ‘what i’ scenarios
and comparing probable gaps with the liquidity buffers maintained.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the un-discounted cash flows of the company's financial liabilities -

Maturity profile of Financial liabilities as on | Maturity profile of Financial liabilities as on March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024
Particulars Borrowings Payables Other Borrowings Payahles Other Financial
{including debt Financial | (including debt liabilities
securities) liabilities securities)
Less than 1 year 24,482 33,050 7,787 12,995 23,427 22,127
Over 1 year to 3 years 70,348 - - 29,393 - 4
Over 3 year to 5 years 102,494 - - 134,292 - =
Total 197,324 33,090 7,787 176,680 23,427 22,127




354

35.4.1

Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Market Risk

Markat risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factors.
Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market
changes. The Company's exposure te market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The company is subject to interest rate risk, primarily since it lends to customers at rates and for maturity periods that may differ from
funding sources. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary policies of of the Reserve Bank
of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic and political conditions, inflation and other
factors. In order to manage interest rate risk, the company seek to optimize borrowing profile between short-term and long-term loans.
The company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversifiad resource-raising options to minimize cast and maximize stability of funds.
Assets and liabilities are categorized into various time buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liability Management Committee
Supervise an interest rate sensitivity report periodically for assessment of interest rate risks.

The company mitigates its interest rate risk by keeping a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being canstant) of the
Company’s statement of profit and loss:

Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024
. Effect on Profit before . Effect on Profit
Particulars Basis Points Basis Points
tax before tax
Loans
Increase in basis points 50 2,253 50 2,753
Decrease in basis points -50 (2,253) -50 (2,753)
Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024
) : Effect on Profit before 2 Effect on Profit
Particulars Basis Points Basis Points
tax before tax
Borrowings
Increase in basis points 50 482 50 681
Decrease in hasis points -50 (482) -50 (681)
Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024
7 - i Effect on Profit before e e Effect on Profit
Particulars Basis Points Basis Points
tax before tax
Investment in units of Mutual Funds
Increase in basis points 50 63 50 58
Decrease in basis points -50 (63) -50 {58)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
[All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 36 : Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table below shows contractual maturity profile of carrying value of assets and liabilities:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Assets Within 12 Aftar 12 Within 12 After 12
Total Total
maonths months months months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7,430 - 7,430 9,179 - 9,179
Bank balance other than included in above 18,234 18,234 17,280 17,280
Loans 38,380 596,266 634,646 27,026 588,717 615,743
Investments 12,542 5,315 17,857 11,672 5:315 16,987
Other financial assets 13,122 68,980 82,103 11,084 94,211 105,295
Non-financial Assets - = -
Current tax asset - 2,858 2,858 - 10,106 10,106
Deffered Tax Assets 6,467 6,467 - 9627 9,627
Other intangible assets - 8,705 8,705 - 10,185 10,185
Other Non financial assets 618 14,248 14,866 14,132 - 14,132
Asset held for sale 3,520 - 3,520 13,185 - 13,185
Total Assets 93,846 702,840 796,686 103,558 718,161 821,719
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
1) Trade Payables
Total i f mi
a]l otzl outstanding durj-s of micro 293 r 293 1341 . 1,341
enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro enterprises 3,655 - 3,655 22,086 - 22,086
and small enterprises
I1) Other Payables - -
a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - - -
b} total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro enterprises 25,143 - 29,143 = =
and small enterprises
Debt Securities o - 0 - - -
Barrowings (Other than debt securities) 11,701 134,088 145,789 12,946 163,025 175,971
Other financial liabilities(to be specified) 7,787 7,787 22,127 - 22,127
Non-Finandial Liabilities " = i
Provisions 359 1,039 1,398 272 847 1,119
Other Non-financial Liabilities 362 - 362 797 - 797
Total liabilities 53,299 135,127 188,427 59,569 163,872 2235441|
Net 40,546 567,713 608,260 43,988 554,289 598,278
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Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes ta Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All armount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Mote 38. Disclosure pursuant to RBI Notification - RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 Dated 13 March 2020 - A ¢ isan k

under Income recognition, asset classification and provisioning (IRACP] and impairment allowanees as per Ind AS 109

“Financial instrurments’ for the year ended 31 March 2025+

Asset

Loss Allowances

Difference between |nd

Asset Classification as per REI Norms classification as Gros;ﬁa:v:niirsnuunt {Provisions) as required Ni:r:z::i"x ::m::l;r:cr:qun::d; A5 109 provisions and
per Ind AS 109 il under Ind AS 109 B oK |IRACP norms
(1) 12] 3} @) [5)={3) - {4 (B} [7)=1(4) - (6}
Performing Assets
Standard Slage 1 523,299 2,530 520,769 1,423 1,107
Stage 2 66,687 2,405 54,278 2,051 355
Subtotal 589,954 4,936 585,047 3,474 1,462
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 41,355 11,107 30,247 5,203 4,904
Doubtiul - up to 1 year Stage 3 10,188 3,056 7,132 2,547 509
1to3 years Stage 3 20,366 8,146 12,219 8,146 -
fulara than 3 years Stage 3 - + = = =
Subtotal for doubtful Stage 3 30,554 11,203 19,351 10,683 509
Liss Stage 3 = = = = =
Subtotal for NPA 71,908 22,310 49,598 16,896 5,413
Other items such 25 EI5, loan commitments, Stage 1 59,880 349 69,530 - 345
‘which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but nat
covared under current Income Recognition, Stage 2 5,508 50 5,408 60
Asset  Classification and  Provisioning|
(IRACP) norms Stage 3 2,282 632 1,651 - 632
Subtotal 77,662 1,041 76,629 - 1,041
Stage 1 593,172 2,879 550,300 1,423 1,457
Tatal Stage 2 72,192 2,466 69,726 2,051 415
Stage 3 74,180 22,941 51,239 16,896 6,044
Total 739,561 28,286 711,275 20,371 7,916




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otharwise)

Note 39: Public Disclosure on Liquidity Risk as per Liquidity Risk Management Framework as per Master Direction - Non-Banking Financlal Company - Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation)

Directions, 2023.

(i)  Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and berrowings):

Number of Significant % of Total
A * (INR Ci f Total D i
Counterparties* LSl " etFosl Beposit Liabilities
3 14.58 MNA 77%

*Significant counterparty is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.Nb.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4 Nov 2012 on Liquidity Risk
Management Framewark for Non Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies, Funding concentration based on significant courterparty has
been computed using latest beneficiary position Instead of original subscribers.

(i} Top 20 large deposits (amount and % of total deposits):

Not Applicable.

{iii) Total of top 10 borrowings (amount and % of total borrowings):

Amount (INR Cr)

% of Total Borrowings

14.58

1008

Funding concentration based en significant counterparty has been computed using latest beneficiary position instead of original subscribers.

(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument* / product:

% of Total
5r. No. N: i the i t, t(IN
r. No. ame of the instrument/product Amount [INR Cr) Lisbllities
1 Term Loan from others 230 12%
2 Other - Securitisation liabilities 12.28 B5%

*Significant instrument/product is as defined in RBI Circular RR1/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD} CC.No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4 November 2019 an Liquidity
Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies

(v) Stock Ratios:

Sr. No. Particulars % of Total Public Funds % of Total Liahilities % of Total Assets
1 Commercial papers = = -
5 Non-convertible debentures (original B b ]
maturity of less than ene year)
3 Other shaort-term liabilities# 7% 28% 7%

# Other Short Term Liabilities includes advance received from customers

Total Liabilities are excluding equity share capital and other equity
Public funds are considered as total of borrowings

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing the risk management framework for the Company. The Board, in turn has established an
ALM Committes (ALCO) for evaluating, monitoring, and reviewing liquidity and interest rate risk arising in the Company on both sides of the Balance sheet. The
Bozrd based on recommendations from the ALCO has prescribed policies and the risk limits for the management of liquidity risk.

ALCO committee is responsible for managing the risks arising out of Asset Liability mismatches consistent with the regulatory requirements and internal risk
tolerances established by the Board. Amongst other responsibilities, ALCO has been empowered to decide tha funding mix for the Company in light of the future
business strategy and prevailing market conditions. ALCO committee is conducted 2t least once in a quarter and the ALCO minutes are reviewed by the Board
from time to time.




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 40. Details of resolution plan implemented under the Resolution framewark for COVID-O related stress as per RBI circular dated 06 August 2020 (Resalution
Framework - 1.0 and 05 May 2021 (Resolution Framework 2.0 as st 31 March 2025 are given below:

{INR In thousands)

(A) i8] € (o) [E)
Exposure to accounts classified|Of (A), agarogate debs|Of (&) amount written off|OF {A] amount paid by|Exposure 10 accounts
a5 Standard consequent tolthat slipped into NPA|during the year ended 31(the borrowers during|classified as Standard
Type of borrewer impl ian of resohstion|during the vear ended|March 2025 the year ended 31|cc o
plan - Position as at 30[31 March 2025 March 2025 limplementation of
Seplember 2024 (A) resolution plan -
Positien as at 31 March
2025
Fersonal Leans 24,897 - 811 3,495 20,591
Corporate persens™ - = - - -
Of which, MSMES g - - - -
Others 3 = = = =
Total 24,897 - 811 3,495 20,591

* Ac defined in Section 3{7) of the Insalvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016

Note 41. Change in liabilitias arising from financing activities

Particulars 1 April 2024 Cash flows Changes in fair values Exchange difference Others® 31 March 2025
Debt securities - - - 5 5

Borrowings other than debt securities 175,971 (30,187) - - 5 145,789
Total liabilities from financing activities 175,571 {30,187} = = 5 145,789
Particulars 1 April 2023 Cash flows Changes in fair values  Exchange difference Others™ 31 March 2024
Diebt securities 406,253 [406,253) - = = -
Borrowings other than debt securities 308,713 {132,153) - - (591) 175,971
Total liabilities from financing activities 714,966 [538,904) - - {591) 175,971

* Others column includes armortisation of transaction cost and interest accrusd but nat due.

Note 42. T social ibili

Pursuant to Sectian 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company is not required to incur any expenditure in respect of corperate social respansibiiity during the year ended 31 March 2025,

21 March 2024; Nil}
Note 43. Expenditure in foreign cu y
The company has net incurred any expenditure in foreign currency during current year and previous year.

MNote 44. Un-hedged foreign currency expnsure
The Company's exposure in respect of forelgn currency denaminated assets & liabiiities (trade receivable & trade payables) a5 at 31 March 2025 is Nil (31 March 2024: Nil)

Note 45 : At the year end, the Company did riot have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

Note 46 : Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has net traded or invested in Crypto currency ar Virtual currency during the financial years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note 47 : Details of benami property held

Mo proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for helding any henami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder in the financial years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Mote 48: Wilful defaulter

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or finandal institution or other lender in the financial years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note 48 ; Registration of charges or satisf: with Regi of C ies {ROC)

All charges or satisfaction are registerad with ROC within the statutory pariod far the financial years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. No charges or satisfactions are yet to he
registered with ROC beyond the statutery period.




Note 50 : Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company, as part of its normal business, grants loans and advances, makes investment, provides guarantees to and accept from its customers, other entities and persons. These
transactions are part of Company’s normal housing finance business, which s conducted ensuring acherence to all regulatory requirements. Other than the transactions described abova, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (sither from borowed funds or share premium or any other saurces or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including forelgn entities [“Intermediarias”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on bahalf of
the Company (Ultimate beneficiaries). The Company has alts not received any fund from any parties (Funding party) with the understanding that the Company shall whethar, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities ldentified by or an behalf of the funding party ("Ultimate beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the
ultimate beneficiarles.

Note 51 : Compli with ber of layers of comp
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescrited under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies [Restriction an number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financlal
years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note 52 : Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has not been undertaken any transactions with any campany whase nama is struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 550 of Companies Act, 1956 in the
financial years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

Note 53 : There have been noevents after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements (31 March 2024; Nil).

Note 54 : The figures of Previous Year (PY) have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever necessary to confirm to those of the Current Year {CY), The fieures have been roundad off to nearest
rupee (in thousands) and any discrepancy in total and sum of amounts in notes is due ta rounding off.

For Ravi Rajan & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Clix Housing Finance Limited

ICA| Firm Registration No.

009073N/N500320

Neeraj Aggarwal akesh Kadl Gagan Aggarwal
Partrer Director Director
Membership No.: 521845 DIN: 02388665 DIN: 10423472
Place: New Delhi Placs: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 27 May 2025 Date: 27 May 2025 Date: 27 May 2025

Company Secretary
Membership No: A17923

Flace: Gurugram Plazs: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2025 Date: 27 May 2025
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Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Disclosures required by National Housing Bank

Minimum disclosures

The following additional disclosures have been given as per the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India [Non-Banking Financial

Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023,

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The accounting policies regarding key areas of operations are disclosed as Note 3 of Accounting policy to the Standalone Financial

Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Disclasure:
Capital
5 As at Asat
Particulars
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
i) [crAR (%) 123.21% 106.25%
ii) |CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 122.60% 105.67%
iii)  |CRAR - Tier Il capital (%) 0.61% 0.58%
iv)  |Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-l capital = =
v]  |Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments 5 =
Reserve Fund ufs 29C of NHB Act, 1987
As at As at
Particul
- 31-03-2025 31.03-2024
Balance at the baginning of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 22,342 17,825
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1){viii)of Income Tax Act, 1961 . -
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
¢} Total - 5
Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add:
a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 1711 4517
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1){viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 -
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Less:
a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of = =
the NHB Act, 1987
b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve ufs 36(1)(viii) - -
of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account
which has been taken into account for the purpose of provision
u/s 29C of the NHE Act, 1987
Balance at the end of the year
a} Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 24,053 22,342
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1){viii)of Income Tax Act, 1961 - =
taken into account for the purposes of Staturory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
¢) Total 24,053 22,342




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

c3. Investment
Particulars Heat peut
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(1) Value of Investments
(i} Gross Value of Investments
{a) InIndia 17,857 16,987
{b) Outside India, # 3
(i} Provisions for Depreciation
{a) Inindia - -5
(b) Outside India, c: -
(fi}  NetValue of Investments
{a) Inindia 17,857 16,987
(b) _Outside India. - 2
2) Movement of  provisions held  towards

depreciation on investments.

(i} Opening balance

(i)  Add:Provisions made during the year

(lii) Less ; Write-off / write-back of excess
livl Closing balance

C4. Derivatives

a) There are no forward rate agreement/ Interest rate swap entered into by the Company during the year ended 21 March 2025 and 31

March 2024.

b)  There are no exchange traded interest rate derivatives entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31

March 2024.

¢] The Company does not have any risk management policy pertaining to derivatives, associated risks and business purpose served as
the Company does not take any of the derivatives mentioned in a and b above during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March

2024,

cs.

There were no non-performing financial assets purchased or sold during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

€6,  Details of transfer through assignment in respect of loans not in default during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Particulars Forthe yearended 31 | For the year ended
March 2025 31 March 2024

Entity - NBFC
Count of loan accounts assigned - 38
Amount of loan accounts assigned - 68,963
Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR) - 10%
Weighted average maturity (Residual Maturity] {months) - 152
Weighted average holding period (months) - 24
Coverage of tangible security coverage - 100%
[Rating wise distribution of rated loans - Unrated

C6.1 Details of acquired through assignment transactions undertaken by HFCs during the vear ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

Particulars For the year ended 31 | For the year ended
March 2025 31 March 2024
Entity HFC -
Count of loan accounts assigned 309 -
Amount of loan accounts assigned 166,475 -
Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR) 10% i
Weighted average residual tenor of loans acquired {in Months) 171 -
Weighted average holding period (months) 18 =
Coverage of tangible security coverage 100% o
Rating wise distribution of rated loans Unrated =
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clix Housing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amaunt in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

(i) Exposures
Exposure Lo Real Estate Sector

Category

As at
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

1} Direct exposure

[a} Residential Mortgages - 661,775 640,011
Lending fully secured by moitgages on residential
property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or thatis rented;
(b} Commercial Real Estate - 117 120
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates {office  buildings,
retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure
would alse include
non-fund based (NFB) limits;
(¢) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures
(a) Residential - .
(b} Commiercial Real Estate - -
2) Indirect exposure
Fund basad and non-fund based exposuras on National Housing Bank {(NHB} and
Housirig Finance Campanies {HFCs) )
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 661,892 640,131
(i) Exposure to Capital Market
As at As at
Category 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

2) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures
and units of equity- orientad mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invested in corporate debt;

h) advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean bhasis
to individuals forinvestment in shares (including IPOs/ESOPs), convertible bonds,
ronvertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

¢} advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary
sacurity;

d) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral
security of shares or convertible bends or convertible debentures or units of aguity
ariented mutual funds i.e. whers the primary security other than shares/convertible
bonds/convertible  debentures/units  of equity oriented mutual funds does not
fully cover the advances;

&) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

f) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / honds/ debentures or
other securities or on clean basis for meating promoter’s contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources;

g) bridge loans ta companies against expected equity flows/issues;

h)  Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of
shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity orfented mutual
funds:

i} Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading;

j)  All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:
(i} Category |

[ii) Category I

(iii} Category I1I;

Total Exposure to Capital Market Sector




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)
(iti} Details of financing of parent company products

There has been no financing made by the Company of parent campany’s products during the vear ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

(iv} Details of Single Borrower Limit (3BL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL)

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 the Company’s credit exposures to single borrowers and group borrowers were within the prudential exposure
limits.

(v) Unsecured Advances

Total loans as on 31 March 2025 includes zero unsecured leans.(31 March 2024: INR Nil)

{vi) Exp to group pani 1in real estate business
5.No. Description Amount % of owned fund
i) Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged in real
|estate business - 0.00%
il Exposure to all entities in a group engaped in real estate
business - 0.005%

[vii) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company has obtained registration from Financial Intalligence Units, India vide Registration No. FI00D00S30.
C9.  Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators

No penalty has been imposed by the NHB or any other regulator during the year.
C10. Related party transactions

Please refer Mate 32 for detailed note on Related party tranactions.
C11. Group Structure

Diagrammatic representation of group structure is as below:

|Cli>e Capital Services Private Limited (Holding Company)* I

|_Clix Housing Finance Limited {Subsidiary Company) |

*Clix Capital Services Private Limited is a wholly awned subsidiary of Plutus Financials Pvi Ltd. (Mauritius}
C12. Ratings assigned by cradit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

As of 31 March 2025, there are ratings heing assigned which are given in the below table.

Rating assigned

Instrument i As at31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2028

Acuite ratings &
Bank loans research f
Brickwark ratings
Acuite ratings &
Long term debt programme rasearch / -
Brickwork ratings

Acuite A+

Acuite A+

C13. Remuneration of directors
No remuneration has been paid to directors during the year (31 March 2024: Nil).
Cl4. Management

Refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis report for the relevant disclosures.




C15.

Ci6.

C17.

C18.

Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes inaccounting palicies

During the year there were no pricr period items which had an impact on current year's profit and loss

Revenue Recognition

There have been no Instances where revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resolutian of significant uncertainties. Please refer Mote 3.3 for revenue

recognition policy,

Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)

The Company does not have any investment in subsidiary/associate/ Joint venture and hence requirement of consolidated financial statements is not applicable,

Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head For the year ended For the year ended
Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for depreciation on investment 7 -
Provision made towards Income Tax - {128}
Provision towards NPA 3,875 {5.991}
Provision for standard assats® (1,117) (71,442)
Other provisions and contingencies** 16,484} (2.073)

* Includes ECL en CRE of INR 1 (31 March 2024 INR 1)

* Other provisions and contingencies includes ECL on loan commitment amounting to Nil {31 March 2074 Nil), ECL an ather financials assets INR [ 5117} (31 March 2024:

INR (775]} and ECL adjusted against interest income on stage 3 assets amounting to INR (1646) [ 31 March 2024: [1478)),




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

(ii) Housing Non-Housing
Break up of Loan & Advances and For the year For the year For the year For the year
Provisions thereon ended ended ended ended

31-03-25 31-03-24 31-03-25 31-03-24

Standard assets
(a} Total Outstanding Amount 458,855 427,678 131,129 146,022
{b) Pravision made 4,181 4,374 756 1,678
Sub-Standard assets
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 37,693 27,636 3,662 13,669
(b} Provision made 10,053 6,880 1,054 3,917
Doubtful assets - Category|
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 5,974 6,785 4214 18,341
(b} Provision made 1,792 2,036 1,264 5,503
Doubtful assets - Category Il
{a) Total Outstanding Amount 2,548 - 17,817 -
{b) Provision made 1,019 = 7,127 -
Doubtful assets - Category llI
{a) Total Qutstanding Amount - m
(b) Provision made - - 3 -
Loss assets
(a) Total Outstanding Amount - = -
{b) Provision made - - = =
Total
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 505,070 462,100 156,822 178,032
(b) Provision made 17,045 13,290 10,201 11,098

C19. Draw Down from Reserves

There has been no draw down from reserves during the financial year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

C20. Concentration of Depasits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

a. Concentration of Advances *

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 153,707 168,278
Per f Ad Wi th ta Total
ercentage o vances to enty 3arges orrowers to To 3% 6%
Advances of the HFC
Concentration of Exposures *
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers 153,707 168,278
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest barrowers / customers to 23% 265%
Total Exposure of the HFC on borrowers / customers
*Gross of impairment loss allowance
c. Concentration of NPAs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Total exposure to top four NPA accounts 39,262 33,594




c21.

cz22,

C23.

Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Sector-wise NPAs

st.No. |sector Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in
that sector
A. Housing Loans
1 Individuals 9.15%
2  |Builders/Project loans =
3 Corporates =
4  |Dthers (specify) -
B. Non Housing Loans
i Individuals 16.38%
2 Builders/Project loans
3 Corporates =
4 | Others (Inter-corporate loan) =
Movement of NPAs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
{i) |Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 7.75% 7.79%
(i) |Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance 66,432 67,191
{b) Additions during the year 42,904 39,953
(c) Reductions during the year (37,426) [40,712)
{d) Closing balance 71,909 66,432
(iii] [Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening balance 48,097 42,864
(b) Additions during tha year 29,630 31,272
(c) Reductions during the year (28,127) (26,039)
(d) Clgsing balance 49,600 48,097
{iif) _|Maovement of Provision for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets)
{a) Opening balance 18,335 24,326
(b) Pravisions made during the year 13,274 8,681
(c} Write-off / write-back of excess provisions (9,299) (14,672)
(d) Closing balance 22,310 18,335
Disclosure of Complaints
For the yearended | For the year ended
S 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaints pending at the baginning of the year 3 0
2 Number of complaints received during the year 15 13
3 Number of complaints disposed off during the year 14 17
31 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC -
4 Mumber af complaints pending 2t the end of the year 2 i
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from office of Ombudsman
5 Mumber of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from the -

of Ombudsman

5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resalved in favour of the NBFC by office

52 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through

5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by

(other than those

6 MNumber of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time

appealed)
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c24,

C26.

c27.

cas.

Grounds of Number of Number of % of increase in the Number of Of 5, number of
Complaints complaints complaints number of complaints | Complaints Pending |complaints pending,
pending at the | received during | received of the previous | atthe end of the beyond 30 days
beginning of the year year year
the year
1 2 3 4 5 6
F.Y. 2024-25
Foreclosure 0
Related ) <He ) )
Banking Related % 2 0% 1 T
PMAY Status - o] 0% = -
Extended
Collection Chase ) u =1 ’ i
CIBIL Related - 3 200% AL -
MISC - 10 67% 2 =
F.Y. 2023-24
Foreclosure - 1%
Related ) ; ) i
Banking Related = 2 271% = -
PMAY Status - 0 -78% - E
Extended
Collection Chase C il 1 )
CIBIL Related - 1 100% = "
MISC - & -75% = =

Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
There were no overseas assets as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

There were no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the company during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Loans against security of single product - gold jewellery:

The company has not granted any loans against gold jeweliery as collateral.
There were no fraud reported during the year (31 March 2024: Nil).

Advances against intangible securities

The Company has not given any loans against intangible securities.

Principal Business Criteria for HFCs

"Housing finance company” shall mean a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 that fulfils the following conditions:
a) Itis an NBFC whose financial assets, in the business of providing finance for housing, constitute at least 60% of Its total assets (netted off by intangible
assets).

b} Out of the total assets (netted off by intangible assets), not less than 50% should be by way of housing financing for individuals.

Principal business criteria for the Company is as below.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025
Total Assets 796,686

Less: Intangible assets# {91,903)
Met total Assets 704,783

Housing Finance 488,024

Individual Housing Finance 488,024

Percentage of housing finance to total assets (netted off intangible assets) 65.24%
Percentage of individual housing finance to total assets (netted off intangible assets) 69.24%
# Intangible zssets inclu nses, EIS receivable (net), Deferred tax assets and Other Intangible Assets,

40




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR theusands, except for share data unfess stated otherwise)

C30. Details of securitisation transaction of the Company as an originator In respact of outstanding ameunt of securitised assats is given balaw:

{in Crores)
Particulars As at31 March 2025 |As at 31 March 2024
1 |Mo of 5PVs spansored by the HFC for securitisation transactiens 2 2
2 |Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored 16.60 20,74
3. |Total amount of expesures retained by the HFC towards the MRR as on the date of balance sheat™
{1} Off-balange shoot exposures towards Cradit Enhancements - -
() On-balance sheet exp 1 ds Credit Enhancements - -
a) Fixed Deposits and Mutuzl Funds 291 2.63
b) Pass through Certificates 0.53 0.53
4 |Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions ether than MAR
{1} Off-balance sheet exposures tawards Credit L
Enhancemnents 8
2] Exposure to own securitisations® - -
b} Exposure ta third party securitisations - -
*Corporate guarantee given by Clix Capital Services Private Limited INR 1.45 Cr as on 31 March 2025 [ 31 March 2024: 1.45 Cr)
** Minimum Retention Ratio
C31. Sectoral Exposure
{in crores)
As at 31 March 2025 Asat31 March 2024
Total Exposure Gross NPAs Fercentage of Gross Total Exposure Gross NPAs | Percentage of
Sactors {includes on NPAs to total exposure | {includes on balance Gross NPAs to total
balance sheet and in that sector sheet and off -balance exposure in that
off -balance sheet sheet exposure] sector
exposure}
1_|Agriculture and allied activities - 5 = m = =
2 |Industry - - - - > =
3 |Services - 0 = o = 2
4 |Personal Leans
1} Housing Loans 50.49 4.62 9.15% 46.20 3.44 7.45%
{ii! Non Housing Loans 15.68 2,57 16.38% 17.80 3.20 17.98%
{iii} Others 0.c1 - 0.00% 0.01 - 0.00%
Total of Personal Loans 66.19 7,19 10.86% 64.01 5.64 10.38%
5 _|Financial Services (Inter-corparate loan) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
C32. Intra-group exposures*
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
1 _[Tetal amount of Intra-group exposures =
2 |Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures -
3 |Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the HFC on 0.00% 0.00%
borrowers.

*includes Inter-corparate loan glven by the Company. It does not include Intercorporate [oan taken by the Company, other Intercompany payables/receivables

€33. Breach of Covenant

There is no breach of the terms of covenantsin respect of debit securities issues and Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) during the year ended 31 March 2025, (31 March 2024: Nil).

C34. Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

€35, Unhed,;

This disciosure is not applicable to the Company since the NHB has not Identified any divergence In gress MPA reparted by the Company

i fareign ¥ 2

There were no unhedged foreign currency exposure during the year ended 31 March 2025, (31 March 2024: Nil}
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amount in INR thousands, exczpt for share data unless stated otherwise)

Schedule to Balance Sheet of a Housing Finance Company as required in terms of Annexure Il of Master Direetion — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021:

[ Particulars
Liabilities side: 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
(1} |Loans and advances availed by the NBFC's inclusive of]
interest accrued thereon but not paid: Amount sutstanding]  Amount overdue Amount outstanding Amount overdue

a) Debentures ; Secured - 2 5 -

i Unsecured - - 2 -
(Other than falling within the meaning of public
deposits)
b} Deferred Credite = . - =
¢} Term Loans = % 5 2
d) Inter-corporata loans and burrowing 23,006 - - -
e} Commercial Paper - - - -
fi Public Depasit - - - -
gl Other Loans:-
External commercial borrowings - - - -

Bank overdraft - - - =
Waorking Capital Demand Loan - - - -
Baorrowing against Securitized Portfolio 122,783 175,971

Finance lease abligation = = 1 .

Assets side: Amaount i A di

5 ]

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

2] Break-up of Laans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those
included in (3} below];

Secured 661,892 540,131
Unsecurad - -
Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counti E s
(3] |AFC activities

i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
a) Financial lease = 7
b) Operating lease = =
i) stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
a) Assets on hire - -
b) Repossessed Assets =
liif _Other loans counting towards AFC activitias

a) Loans where assets have been repossessed 3,520 13,185

b) Loans other than (3] above - -

(4] |Break-up of Investments:

Current investments :

1. Quoted:

{i} Shares; (a] Equity - -
(b} Preference -

(il) Debentures and Bands -

{iii) Units of mutual funds 12,542 11,672

(i) Government Securities =

{v) Others - 3

Z. Unquoted:
(1) Shares: [a) Equity - *

[b) Prefercnce % -
[ii} Debentures and Bonds - o
(iii} Units of mutual funds -
{iv) Government Securities - =
(v} Others - -

Long Term investments:
1. Quoted;
(i} Shares: (a) Equity 4 =
{b) Preference | L
(if) Debentures and Bonds x %
[iii} Units of mutual funds = 1
{iv) Government Securities E %
(v} Others _

Z, Unquoted:
(1} Shares: [a) Equity ¥ -

(b) Preference - 2
it} Debentures and Bonds 2 .
[iii) Units of mutual funds = =
v} Govermment Securities = &
v} Others 5,315 5315




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amaunt in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

{5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2} and (3) abowe:

Category Amaunt net of provisions

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Secured Unsecured Total Secured u Total

1. Related Parties

{a) Subsidiariez = = - . "

(b) Companies in the same group - - - - - -

(c] Other ralated parties - - - - - -

2, Other than related parties 634,646 - 634,646 615,743 - £15,743

Taotal 634,646 - 634,646 615,743 - 615,744
(6)  |Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long term) in shares and securities {both guoted and unquoted): _l
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Category Market Value / Bresk]  Book Value (Netof | Market Value / Break up | Book Value (Net af
up or fair value or Provisions) or fairvalue or NAY Prowvisions)
NAY

1. Related Parties:-

{a) Subsidiaries - - - -

(b} Companies in the same group - - - -

{c) Other related parties = - = =

2. Other than related parties 17,857 17,857 16,987 16,987

Tatal 17,857 17,857 16,587 16,987

{7)  |Other Information 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
{i Grogs Nen-Performing Assets

(a} Related parties - -

(b} Other than related parties 71,909 66,432
(i)  [Net Non-Perfarming Assets

(3} Related parties ¥ o

{b} Other than related parties 49,600 43,097
(i) |Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - &




